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KRISTEN E. KUBECKA

COUNTY AUDITOR
MATAGORDA COUNTY
1700 SEVENTH STREET, ROOM 326
BAY CITY, TEXAS 77414-5095
(409) 244-7611

Honorable District Judges of Matagorda County and
Honorable Members of the Matagorda County Commissioners Court:

Chapter 114.025 and chapter 115.045 of the Local Government Code of the State of Texas requires the
issuance within six months of the close of each fiscal year a complete set of financial statements presented in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards by a licensed certified public accountant. Pursuant to that requirement, we
hereby issue the comprehensive annual financial report of Matagorda County for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2016.

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of Matagorda County.
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all the
information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, the
County has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the
government’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the
preparation of Matagorda County’s financial statements in conformity with GAAP. The County’s
comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute
assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement because the cost of internal
controls should not outweigh their benefits. We assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this
financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

Matagorda County’s financial statements have been audited by Harry Afadapa & Associates, PC, certified
public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial
statements of the County for the year ended December 31, 2016, are free of material misstatement. The
independent audit involves examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor
concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified opinion that
the County’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016, are presented in conformity
with GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first item in the financial section of this
report.

The independent audit of the financial statements of Matagorda County was part of the broader, federally
mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs of federal and state grantor agencies. The
standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditors to report not only on the fair
presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited government’s internal controls and legal
requirements involving the administration of federal awards. These reports are included in the Single Audit
section of this report.



Generally accepted accounting principles require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview,
and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in
conjunction with it. Matagorda County’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the
independent auditors. The financial section also includes government-wide financial statements, fund financial
statements, notes, required supplementary information and the combining and individual fund financial
statements and schedules. The statistical section of the report includes selected financial and demographic
information, which is generally presented on a multi-year basis.

PROFILE OF MATAGORDA COUNTY

The County of Matagorda, created in 1836 is rich in history and tradition. The County is located between
Galveston and Corpus Christi along the Gulf Coast and enjoys a diversity of geography from its wide expanse
of prairies to the many creeks, rivers, lakes, bays and Gulf of Mexico. Matagorda County occupies an area of
1,115 square miles and serves an estimated population of 36,702. The County is a political subdivision of the
State of Texas. Neighboring counties are Brazoria, Wharton and Jackson.

The County operates as specified under the Constitution of the State of Texas and Vernon’s Texas Code
Annotated, which provide for a Commissioners Court consisting of the County Judge and four County
Commissioners, one from each of four geographical precincts. The Commissioners Court is the governing
body of the County. The County Judge is elected at large to serve a four-year term and the Commissioners
serve four-year staggered terms, two members elected every two years.

The Commissioners Court has certain powers granted to it by the state legislature. lts duties include adoption
of the budget, setting of the tax rates, approval of contracts, appointment of certain county officials and the
development of policies and orders. The Commissioners Court shares the financial controls of the County with
the County Auditor who is appointed according to Texas State statutes for two year terms by the District
Judges. The County Auditor holds the basic responsibilities for establishing accounting policies and
procedures, maintaining the records of all financial transactions of the County, and “examining and approving”
disbursements from county funds prior to their submission to the Commissioners Court for payment.

Matagorda County provides many services not ordinarily provided by any other entity of government and
provides additional services in cooperation with other local governmental units. These include volunteer fire
departments, libraries and the museum. A primary service is the administration of justice, which includes the
county and district courts, justices of the peace, constables, district attorney, clerks of the courts, sheriff, jail,
and bailiffs. Other functions performed by the County include juvenile services, maintaining public health and
welfare and the construction and maintenance of roads and bridges.

BUDGET

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the County’s planning and control. Budgetary control is
maintained at the subtotal level of the County budget for the following categories: Personnel, Operating Costs,
Capital Outlay and Debt. Expenditures for current operating funds may not exceed available cash balances in
such funds at January 1, plus the estimate of revenues for the ensuing year. At any time during the year,
Commissioners Court may increase the budget for unexpected revenues, expenditures, or actual beginning
fund balances in excess of budgeted estimates, provided that Commissioners Court declares the existence of
an emergency necessitating the increase. All annual budget appropriations lapse at year end with the
exception of the commissioner's budgets. Prior to year end, the commissioners commit a portion of
unrestricted General Fund balance for the unspent portion of their precinct budgets. The County also
maintains an encumbrance accounting system for the general fund as one method of maintaining budgetary
control. Budget to actual comparisons are provided in this report for each individual government fund for which
an appropriated annual budget has been adopted.



LONG TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING

The long term financial plans of the county consist of continued infrastructure improvement for roads and
bridges and efforts to explore avenues for enhanced economic growth. The commissioners' court adopted an
updated tax abatement policy to aid in negotiations with potential industrial clients and to continue to attract
growth for Matagorda County.

Additional appropriations for courthouse maintenance and repairs were approved to preserve our capital
assets to ensure they reach their potential life expectancy.

LOCAL ECONOMY

An understanding of the financial condition of Matagorda County is enhanced though a perspective of the
environment in which the County operates. Matagorda County’s primary economic bases include utilities,
petrochemical processing, transmission, agriculture, commercial fishing and tourism. Matagorda County has
outstanding opportunities for industry growth because of its location and proximity to the Gulf of Mexico, the
Colorado River and the Gulf Intercoastal Canal waterway as well as rail accessibility.

For several years, Matagorda County has partnered with the South Texas Project Nuclear Operating Company
(STP) in providing Emergency Preparedness Training and Operations Drills for the safety of its citizens. This
contract is not only financially favorable to the County, but has also provided invaluable emergency
preparedness skills and a network of cooperation between the County leaders and departments and its
industry neighbors. Through a joint partnership with the South Texas Project and Wharton County Junior
College, the South Texas Center for Energy Development continues to serve as a career center for staffing at
STP and also offers classes focusing on process-technology and power-technology programs to train students
for work at chemical, industrial and nuclear plants.

Matagorda Regional Medical Center (MRMC) serves the community atits 117,000 square-foot facility located
on 45 acres of land on Texas 35 west. This two-story acute care hospital has 58 patient rooms, offers
expanded services, and attractive and comfortable patient and visitor areas. A 40,000 square foot medical
office building on the MRMC campus provides a two-story Diagnostic Center for outpatient testing as well as
physician clinic space.

The economic outlook for Matagorda County remains positive for the future. Tenaris continues construction of
a seamless steal pipe manufacturing plant that will have an approximate value of $1.8 billion. This plant will
bring 600 jobs to the county and is expected to be operational in 2017. Dunn Heat Exchanger is now fully
operational. This plant cleans, decontaminates, repairs, and fabricates heat exchangers and has brought new
employment opportunities to the County. Construction continues on multiple new hotels in Bay City. The
County hopes that with these additions more business opportunities will follow. The South Texas Project
Nuclear Operating Company continues toward its plans to build two additional units at the site in the near
future. Although the expansion has been delayed while the industry recovers from the aftermath of the nuclear
disaster in Japan, the preparation continues. The future construction would bring temporary jobs to the
community and upon completion provide approximately 1,000 permanent jobs to Matagorda County. Tourism
continues to grow as Matagorda’s coastline is developed and discovered by those who enjoy fishing, beach
and river activities or just relaxing.

FINANCIAL POLICIES

The County has adopted an investment policy as required by state law and in conformity with state investment
statutes. The investment policy as adopted by the County employs the prudent person concept in that priorities
were established as to the investment vehicles the County would use. Compliance with the laws of the State of
Texas and Safety were established as first priorities, followed by liquidity, low risk and diversification with an
active versus passive management philosophy maintaining high professional and ethical standards. The
County Treasurer is responsible for administering all of the investment of idle funds in the County. For the last
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several years, the County's depository has provided better interest rates than comparable liquid investments.
During the fiscal year, the County earned approximately $0.17 million interest on the funds invested.

In 2011 the County established a Fund Balance Policy in accordance with Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement 54, adopting new classifications of fund balance, the method for committing
fund balance and setting the order in which resources will be expended.

The County is responsible for establishing its tax rate. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016, the
tax rate to finance general governmental services was $0.39568 per $100 valuation and the tax rate for
the payment of principal and interest on long-term debt was $0.00680 per $100 of valuation.

In addition, the County also has the following financial policies:

e The Commissioners Court of the County shall formally adopt the annual budget prepared by the
Budget Officer, members of the Commissioners’ court and the County Auditor.

o Expenditures are controlled not to exceed available resources. All elected officials and department
heads are required to keep expenditures within allocated budgets.

e Balanced financial operations will be maintained. Adequate internal accounting controls are
developed and maintained to safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance of proper recording
of financial transactions.

e The County continues its effort on the replacement and upgrade of software when needed and it has
provided funding when possible.

o Delivery of service to the constituents.

e Restrain the debt issuance to keep the tax rate low.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate
of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Matagorda County for its comprehensive annual
financial report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015. In order to be awarded a Certificate of
Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive
annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable
legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The County has received a Certificate of
Achievement for the last 13 consecutive years. We believe that our current comprehensive annual financial
report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to
the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

I would like to express my appreciation to members of the Commissioners’ Court and to the District Judges for
their interest and support in planning and conducting the financial operations of the County in a responsible
and professional manner. The timely completion of this report could not have been achieved without the
dedicated efforts of the entire staff of the Office of County Auditor and the professional services provided by
our independent Auditor, Harry Afadapa & Associates, P.C.

Respectfully submitted,

Kristen Kubecka, County Auditor
Matagorda County, Texas
June 26, 2016
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Harry Afadapa & Associates, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants
2300 Avenue I
Bay City, Texas 77414
(979) 245-7361 ~ www.afadapa.com

Independent Auditor's Report

To the To the Commissioners
Matagorda County

1700 Seventh Street

Bay City, Texas 77414

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the Matagorda County ("the County") as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the County's
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmeni Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the County's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of Matagorda County as of December 31, 2016, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.



Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's
Discussion and Analysis, budgetary comparison information, schedule of the County's proportionate share of
the net pension liability and schedule of County pension contributions identified as Required Supplementary
Information in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the Required Supplementary Information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Matagorda County's basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual
nonmajor fund financial statements, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not required parts of the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards
is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR)
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements  for
Federal Awards, Subpart F-- Audit Requirements (Uniform Guidance) and is also not a required part of the
basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 26, 2017

on our consideration of Matagorda County's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.



The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering Matagorda County's internal control over financial reporting
and compliance.

Respectfully submitted,

Digitally signed by Harry Afadapa &

Harry Afadapa e

DN: cn=Harry Afadapa & Associates, PC,
o=Harry Afadapa & Associates, PC, ou,

& ASSOC|ateS, PC email=harry@afadapa.com, c=US

Date: 2017.07.10 12:55:03 -05'00"

Harry Afadapa & Associates, PC

Bay City, Texas
June 26, 2017
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MATAGORDA COUNTY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

This discussion and analysis of Matagorda County’s financial performance provides a narrative overview of the
County’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016. The information presented here should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying transmittal letter, the basic financial statements and the accompanying
notes to those financial statements.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the County’s basic financial statements. The
County’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund
financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other required supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers
with a broad overview of Matagorda County’s finances in a manner similar to private sector business. They present
the financial picture of the County from an economic resources measurement focus using the accrual basis of
accounting. These statements include all assets of the County (including infrastructure) as well as all liabilities
(including long-term debt). Additionally, certain eliminations have occurred in regards to interfund activity, payables
and receivables.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the County’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of Matagorda County is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed during the most
recent fiscal year using full accrual basis of accounting. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.qg.,
earned but unused vacation leave and uncollected taxes).

Both of the government-wide statements distinguish between functions of Matagorda County that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to
recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business activities). The governmental
activities of the County include general government, justice, public safety, corrections and rehabilitation, health and
human services, community and economic development, and infrastructure and environmental services.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources
that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Matagorda County, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.
All of the funds of the County can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on current sources and uses of spendable
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information
may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental funds balance
sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.
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MATAGORDA COUNTY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

The County maintains seventeen individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statements of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances for the general fund. Data from the other fifteen governmental funds are combined into a
single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in
the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

Proprietary funds. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The Internal Service Fund (a type of proprietary fund) is used to accumulate and
allocate costs internally among the County’s various functions. The County uses an internal service fund to account
for its self-funded health insurance program. Because these services predominately benefit governmental rather
than business-type functions, they have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the resources of
those funds are not available to support the County’s own programs. The accounting used for the fiduciary funds is
much like that used for proprietary funds. The County is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these
funds are used for their intended purposes. The County uses agency funds to account for various assets held for
the benefit of others.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding
of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes disclose other pertinent
information that, when taken in whole with the financial statements, provide a more detailed picture of the state of the
finances of the County.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents
certain required supplementary information that further explains and supports the information in the financial
statements. The combining statements and individual fund budgetary comparison schedules are presented
immediately following the required supplementary information.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The County’s net position for the years ending December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

MATAGORDA COUNTY’S NET POSITION

2016 2015 Variance

Current and other assets $ 39,481,850 $ 38,760,258 $ 721,592
Capital Assets 23,804,822 24,617,256 (812,434)
Total assets 63,286,672 63,377,514 (90,842)

Total deferred outflow of resources 4,998,873 2,162,857 2,836,016
Current and other liabilities 4,196,010 2,671,100 1,524,910
Long-term liabilities 20,705,654 17,222,206 3,483,448
Total liabilities 24,901,664 19,893,306 5,008,358

Total deferred inflow of resources 18,639,108 16,885,835 1,753,273
Net investment in capital assets 20,110,391 23,077,392 (2,967,001)
Restricted for debt senvice 24,040 21,643 2,397
Restriced for construction 1,450,337 2,714,092 (1,263,755)
Restricted for legislative purposes 918,876 711,765 207,111
Unrestricted 2,241,129 2,236,338 4,791
Total net position 24,744,773 $ 28,761,230 $ (4,016,457)
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MATAGORDA COUNTY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

Current assets increased by $721,592 resulting from a combination of increases and decreases. Investments category
increased over $3.8 million. Taxes receivable increased over $900 thousand due in part to delinquent unpaid taxes
from Tres Palacios Gas Storage, LLC pending results of a property valuation lawsuit as well as an increase in the tax
rate. Other receivable, however, decreased by over $700 thousand. Cash and cash equivalents decreased over $2.6
million and prepaid decreased over $500 thousand.

Deferred outflow of resources increased by over $2.8 million to account for the increase in Pension liabilities under
GASB 68 “Accounting and Financial Reporting of Pension”. Noncurrent liabilities increased overall by $3,483,448 of
which over $1.1 million pertains to GASB 45 and $2.9 million represents the continued implementation of GASB 68.

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In the
case of Matagorda County, assets exceeded liabilities by $24,744,773 at the close of the most recent fiscal year with a
positive balance in all categories. Eighty-one percent (81%) of the County’s net position, $20,110,391, reflects its net
investment in capital assets. The County uses capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently these assets
are not available for future spending. Although the County’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related
debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the
capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

The County’s changes in net position for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:
MATAGORDA COUNTY’S CHANGES IN NET POSITION
12/31/2016 12/31/2015 Variance

Rewvenues:
Program revenues:
Fees, fines and charges for senices $ 5,303,071 $ 7,513,364 $ (2,210,293)

Operating grants and contributions 1,065,975 1,225,197 (159,222)
Capital Grants and Contributions 7,100,204 8,441,394 (1,341,190)
General revenues:
Property taxes 16,392,558 15,272,676 1,119,882
Miscellaneous 144,532 46,471 98,061
Unrestricted investment earnings 173,033 167,131 5,902
Total revenues 30,179,373 32,666,233 (2,486,860)
Expenses:
General government 4,594,032 4,140,190 453,842
Justice system 4,008,884 3,837,068 171,816
Public safety 4,404,045 4,014,643 389,402
Corrections & rehabilitation 2,692,576 2,417,196 275,380
Health and human senvices 1,450,050 1,411,815 38,235
Community & economic development 1,210,022 1,303,273 (93,251)
Infrastructure and environmental svs. 8,580,302 6,850,164 1,730,138
Intergovernmental 7,130,930 1,620,146 5,510,784
Interest on debt 124,987 154,903 (29,916)
Total expenses 34,195,828 25,749,398 8,446,430
Increase (decrease) in net position (4,016,455) 6,916,835 (10,933,290)
Net position - beginning 28,761,230 21,844,395 6,916,835
Net position - ending $ 24,744,775 $ 28,761,230 $ (4,016,455)
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MATAGORDA COUNTY
MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

Governmental activities decreased the County’s net position by $4,016,455 compared to a prior year increase of
$6,916,835. The following are some of the more significant factors contributing to the decrease net change in position:

Charges for various services decreased by $2,210,293; primarily due to a $549,146 decrease in Emergency
Response Fee and an estimated $800,000 decrease in court fines and fees.

Property taxes increased by $1,119,882, however due to a refund in the amount of $357,785 pertaining to the
Tres Palacios Gas Tax Lawsuit a larger increase was not incurred.

Capital grants and contributions decreased overall as a result of the conclusion of Community Development
Block Grant funds for the $4.6 million Sargent Road Hardening project, $1.4 million for Hawkins Stevens Road
project, and $376,747 Palacios Sewer Improvement project coupled with a $5.5 million dollar increase in pass-
through grants to sub recipients.

As a result of the increase in intergovernmental pass-through grants to sub recipients noted above, the related
intergovernmental function costs increased.

Infrastructure and environmental service costs were up due in large part to depreciation expense. The prior
year over $7.7 million of new assets were depreciated for a partial year, whereas 2016 recognized a full year
of depreciation.

2015 Revenue Percentages

B Property taxes

M Capital grants &
contributions

M Fees, fines & charges for
services

B Operating grants &
contributions

m Unrestricted investment
earnings

m Miscellaneous

2016 Revenue Percentages

B Property taxes

M Capital grants &
contributions

M Fees, fines & charges for
services

B Operating grants &
contributions

B Unrestricted investment
earnings

= Miscellaneous
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MATAGORDA COUNTY
MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

2015 Expense Percentages

1% M General government

27%

= Community & economic
development

m Infrastrusture &
environmental services

1 Intergovernmental

16%
M Justice system
B Public safety
B Corrections & rehabilitation
15%
M Health & human services

5% '

5% 16%

9% Interest & fees on debt

2016 Expense Percentages

0% M General government

13%
M Justice system
12% B Public safety
M Corrections & rehabilitation

M Health & human services

B Community & economic
development

o Infrastrusture &
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1 Intergovernmental

Interest & fees on debt




MATAGORDA COUNTY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. Fund accounting and budget controls has been the framework of the County’s strong fiscal management
and accountability.

Governmental funds. The general government functions are reported in the General, Intergovernmental, Special
Revenue, and Debt Service funds. The focus of the County’s governmental funds is to provide information on current
sources, uses, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in determining the County’s financing
requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources
available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the County’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$13,297,148. Approximately 68% of this amount (9.1 million) constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is available
for spending at the County’s discretion. The remainder of fund balance is divided among committed fund balance of
$1,436,849, restricted fund balance of $2,395,215 and non-spendable fund balance of $408,330. The County’s ability
to spend each of these types of fund balance is more limited than with unassigned fund balance, and the limitations on
spending are discussed more fully in the notes to the financial statements.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the County. At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund
balance of the general fund was $9,056,754, while total fund balance was $10,901,933. As a measure of the general
fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund
expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 40% of total general fund expenditures, and total fund balance
represents 48% of that same amount.

The fund balance of Matagorda County’s general fund increased by $552,558 compared to a net increase of $151,905
the prior year. Overall, revenue and other sources were up by $1,359,949 while expenditures were down by
$226,051. Following are some of the more significant factors noted:

e Tax revenue was up by $2,566,091. As discussed earlier, this is due to the increased tax rate when compared
to prior year.

¢ Intergovernmental revenue was down by $729,904. This is a result of a decrease in federal and state grant
funds for the year.

o Decrease in Charges for Services by 553,623 due primarily to reduction in emergency response fee.

e Expenditures decreased by $226,051 with no significant impact in any one function.

Proprietary funds. The County has only one proprietary fund type which is an internal service fund. This internal
service fund is used to account for a self-funded health insurance program. The fund for 2016 had an operating loss of
$383,920 as compared to last year’s loss of $365,076. Premium revenue increased slightly to help defray the rising
costs of healthcare.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The Commissioners’ Court approved increases to budgeted operating revenue of $1,561,584 and appropriations of
$3,880,667. The most significant revenue amendment was to intergovernmental revenue of $972,459, including
approval of CIAP and Emergency Management grants, with corresponding appropriations. Upon completion of the
audit, the prior year committed funds were allocated to the four precincts current year budgets for an overall total of
$1,788,128. Emergency building repairs from fund balance were also added to the current year in the amount of
$412,095.
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MATAGORDA COUNTY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

CAPITAL ASSETS AND LONG-TERM DEBT

Capital assets. The County’s investment in capital assets for its governmental activities as of December 31, 2016
amounts to $23,804,822 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land; buildings

and improvements; equipment and vehicles; and infrastructure for roads and bridges. Overall, the capital assets
decreased by $812,432.

The following table lists the County’s investment in capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) as of December
31, 2016

MATAGORDA COUNTY’S CAPITAL ASSETS

Balances Balances

12/31/2015 Increases Decreases 12/31/2016

Land $ 1,349,101 $ 7,250 $ - $ 1,356,351
Construction in Progress 81,571 807,028 - 888,599
Infrastructure 45,485,406 855,695 879,245 45,461,856
Buildings and improvements 13,815,272 652,212 - 14,467,484
Vehicles and equipment 11,905,218 727,227 372,793 12,259,652
" 72,636,568 3,049,412 1,252,038 74,433,942
Less accumulated depreciation (48,019,314) (3,204,286) 594,480 (50,629,120)

$ 24617254 § (154,874) $§ 657,558 $ 23,804,822
Some of the more significant transactions are noted below:

e Purchase of equipment for road construction, and road replacement of $855,695.
e Purchase of new truck, police cars and other equipment of over $708,000.

e Depreciation expense and adjustments of $3,204,286. The prior year partially depreciated over $7 million in
infrastructure, whereas a full year’s depreciation is captured in 2016.

2015 Capital Assets at Cost

M Infrastructure
M Buildings & Improvements
Vehicles & Equipment

W Land

m Constructin in Progress
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MATAGORDA COUNTY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

2016 Capital Asset Breakdown

M Infrastructure

M Buildings & Improvements
Vehicles & Equipment

M Land

m Constructin in Progress

Additional information of Matagorda County’s capital assets can be found in note D of this report.

Long-term debt. The County’s long-term debt consists of certificates of obligation for County-wide facility
improvements, capital leases for software and equipment, accumulated net post-employment benefits (retiree health
insurance) and net pension liabilities.

The following table lists the County’s long-term debt as of December 31, 2016

MATAGORDA COUNTY’S LONG-TERM DEBT

Balances Balances

12/31/2015 Increases Decreases 12/31/2016
Certificates of obligatioin $ 2,930,000 $ - $ 180,000 $ 2,750,000
Capital leases 1,359,864 - 415,433 944,431
Compensated absences 349,695 253,536 227,851 375,380
Net OPEB obligation 8,810,570 2,479,406 1,329,276 9,960,700
Net pension obligation 3,714,767 3,822,138 916,055 6,620,850
Issuance Premium 57,310 - 3,016 54,294

$ 17,222,206 $ 6,555,080 $ 3,071,631 $ 20,705,655

Some of the more significant transaction for the year include:

o Pay off a certificate of obligation for facility improvements in 2016.

e Continued Implementation of GASB 68 mentioned earlier related to the recognition of net pension obligation at
year end.

¢ Continued amortization and recognition of net post-employment health insurance obligation at year end.

Additional information on Matagorda County’s long-term debt can be found in note F of this report.
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MATAGORDA COUNTY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

The annual budget is developed to provide efficient, effective and controlled use of the County’s resources. Through
the budget the County Commissioners set the direction of the County, allocate its resources and establish its priorities.
The 2017 budget was adopted August 29, 2016 with General Fund expenditures of $22,954,335 and a revenue budget
or $22,954,335.

The Commissioners’ Court adopted a maintenance and operation tax rate of .41998 per $100 assessed valuation. The
court also adopted an interest and sinking tax rate of .00443.

The main factors affecting the 2017 Budget were as follows:
e A decrease in budgeted revenue for emergency response fee in the amount of $192,978.
e An increase in expected tax revenues in the amount of $1,032,836 as a result of increased values and

rates.
e Anincrease in budgeted payroll and benefits; 5% for employees excluding elected and appointed officials.

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the County’s finances. Questions concerning any of

the information provided in this reeort or request for additional information should be addressed to the Office of the
Matagorda County Auditor, 1700 7" Street, Room 326, Bay City, Texas 77414, or call (979) 244-7611.
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MATAGORDA COUNTY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31,2016

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables ( net of allowances for uncollectibles):
Taxes
Escrow
Other
Prepaid items
Due from other governments
Interest receivable
Purchased interest receivable
Investments
Capital Assets (net of accumulated depreciation):
Land
Construction in progress
Buildings
Improvements
Infrastructure
Equipment
Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred ouflow of pension resources
Total Deferred Outflow of Resources

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll

Claims payable

Due to other governments

Due to others

Accrued interest payable

Unearned revenue

Escrow reserves

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due within one year
Due in more than one year

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unearned revenue - current taxes
Pension related

Total deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION:
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted For:

Debt Service

Construction

Legislative Purposes
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Governmental
Activities

$ 7,962,457

15,912,540
25,485
4,795,596
408,330
15,438
26,383

426
10,335,195

1,356,350
888,600
7,943,710
202,904
9,370,877
4,042,381
63,286,672

4,998,873
4,998,873

1,847,314
206,537
125,920

1,100,420
419,366

41,802
396,717
57,934

526,443
20,179,211
24,901,664

18,106,179
532,929
18,639,108

20,110,391

24,040
1,450,337
918,876
2,241,129

$ 24,744,773



MATAGORDA COUNTY
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

Net (Expense)
Revenue and

Changes in
Program Revenues Net Position
Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities
Government Activities:
General government $ 4,594,032 $ 1,373,609 $ 20,406 $ - (3,200,017)
Justice system 4,008,884 248,067 512,737 - (3,248,080)
Public safety 4,404,045 2,821,947 269,703 - (1,312,395)
Corrections and rehabilitation 2,692,576 179,924 89,680 - (2,422,972)
Health and human services 1,450,050 72,149 -- -- (1,377,901)
Community and economic development 1,210,022 214,760 43,847 92,682 (858,733)
Infrastructure and environmental services 8,580,302 392,615 31,173 21 (8,156,493)
Intergovernmental 7,130,930 - 98,429 7,007,501 (25,000)
Interest and fees on debt 124,987 -- -- -- (124,987)
Total governmental activities 34,195,828 5,303,071 1,065,975 7,100,204 (20,726,578)
Total Primary Government $ 34,195,828 $  5303,071 $ 1,065975 $ 7,100,204 (20,726,578)
General Revenues:
Property taxes 16,392,558
Miscellaneous 144,532
Unrestricted investment earnings 173,033
Total General Revenues 16,710,123
Change in Net Position (4,016,455)
Net Position - Beginning 28,761,228
Net Position - Ending 24,744,773

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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MATAGORDA COUNTY
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2016

Inter Other Total
General Governmental Governmental Governmental
Fund Grants Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,441,369 $ -- $ 3,122,297 $ 6,563,666
Receivables ( net of allowances for uncollectibles):
Taxes 15,731,117 - 181,423 15,912,540
Escrow 25,485 - - 25,485
Other receivables 4,013,163 746,699 24,898 4,784,760
Prepaid items 408,330 - - 408,330
Due from other governments 15,438 -- -- 15,438
Due from other funds 10,498 - - 10,498
Interest receivable 26,383 - - 26,383
Purchased Interest receivable 426 - - 426
Investments 10,335,195 -- -- 10,335,195
Total Assets $ 34,007,404 $ 746,699 $ 3,328,618 $ 38,082,721
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 614,004 $ 746,699 $ 424630 $ 1,785,333
Accrued payroll 206,537 - - 206,537
Due to other governments 424,869 - 1 424 870
Due to other funds - - 10,498 10,498
Due to others 353,057 - 66,309 419,366
Unearned revenue 1,253,973 - 201,000 1,454,973
Escrow reserves 57,934 - - 57,934
Total Liabilities 2,910,374 746,699 702,438 4,359,511
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - delinquent taxes 2,286,718 - 33,165 2,319,883
Unearned revenue - current taxes 17,908,379 - 197,800 18,106,179
Total deferred inflows of resources 20,195,097 - 230,965 20,426,062
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Non-spendable:
Prepaid items 408,330 - - 408,330
Restricted for:
Captial projects - - 1,450,337 1,450,337
Debt service - - 26,002 26,002
Legislative purposes - - 918,876 918,876
Committed for:
Precincts 1,436,849 - - 1,436,849
Unassigned 9,056,754 - - 9,056,754
Total Fund Balances (Deficits) 10,901,933 - 2,395,215 13,297,148
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources
and Fund Balances (Deficits) $ 34,007,404 $ 746,699 $ 3,328,618 $ 38,082,721

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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MATAGORDA COUNTY

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

DECEMBER 31,2016

Total fund balances - governmental funds balance sheet $

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position
("SNP") are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not reported in the funds.

Property taxes receivable unavailable to pay for current period expenditures are deferred in the funds.
The assets and liabilities of internal service funds are included in governmental activities in the SNP.
Payables for capital leases which are not due in the current period are not reported in the funds.

Payables for bond interest which are not due in the current period are not reported in the funds.

Payables for certificates of obligation which are not due in the current period are not reported in the funds.
Payables for compensated absences which are not due in the current period are not reported in the funds.
Other post employment benefits which are not due and payable in the current period are not reported in the fur
Certificat of obligation premiums are amortized in the SNA but not in the funds.

Court fines receivable unavailable to pay for current period expenditures are deferred in the funds.
Recognition of the County's proportionate share of the net pension liability is not reported in the funds.
Deferred Resource Inflows related to the pension plan are not reported in the funds.

Deferred Resource Outflows related to the pension plan are not reported in the funds.

Net position of governmental activities - Statement of Net Position $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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13,297,148

23,804,823
2,319,883
410,360
(944,431)
(41,802)
(2,750,000)
(375,380)
(9,960,700)
(54,293)
1,194,071
(6,620,850)
(532,929)

4,998,873

24,744,773



MATAGORDA COUNTY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines
Investment income
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government
Justice system
Public safety
Corrections and rehabilitation
Health and human services
Community and economic development
Infrastructure and environmental services
Intergovernmental
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fees on debt
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

Inter Other Total
General Governmental Governmental Governmental
Fund Grants Funds Funds
16,545,809 - $ 287,891 §$ 16,833,700
770,097 -- - 770,097
810,442 7,130,930 362,814 8,304,186
4,168,743 - 262,612 4,431,355
429,327 -- -- 429,327
169,004 - 4,029 173,033
310,611 - 32,476 343,087
23,204,033 7,130,930 949,822 31,284,785
3,517,014 - 1,302,487 4,819,501
3,336,936 - 203,850 3,540,786
3,820,322 - 1,328 3,821,650
2,267,636 - 188,068 2,455,704
1,342,124 - - 1,342,124
1,072,840 - 2,015 1,074,855
5,980,068 - - 5,980,068
-- 6,442,116 - 6,442,116
880,611 688,814 - 1,569,425
414,965 - 180,000 594,965
39,459 - 88,405 127,864
22,671,975 7,130,930 1,966,153 31,769,058
532,058 - (1,016,331) (484,273)
27,500 - 7,000 34,500
(7,000) - (27,500) (34,500)
20,500 - (20,500) -
552,558 - (1,036,831) (484,273)
10,349,375 - 3,432,046 13,781,421
10,901,933 - $ 2395215 $ 13,297,148
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MATAGORDA COUNTY

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ (484,273)
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities
("SOA") are different because:
Capital outlays are not reported as expenses in the SOA. 2,999,964
The depreciation of capital assets used in governmental activities is not reported in the funds. (3,861,845)
Donations of capital assets increase net position in the SOA but not in the funds. 49,448
Certain property tax revenues are deferred in the funds. This is the change in these amounts this year. (441,142)
Repayment of certificate of obligation principal is an expenditure in the funds but is not an expense in the SOA 180,000
Repayment of capital lease principal is an expenditure in the funds but is not an expense in the SOA. 415,433
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest from beginning of period to end of period. (607)
The net revenue (expense) of internal service funds is reported with governmental activities. (383,920)
Compensated absences are reported as the amount earned in the SOA but as the amount paid in the funds. (25,684)
Revenues in the SOA for court fines not providing current financial resources are not reported in the funds. (713,718)
Bond premiums are reported in the funds but not in the SOA. 3,016
Change in joint venture equity is not reported in the funds. (1,150,130)
Pension expense relating to GASB 68 is recorded in the SOA but not in the funds. (602,997)

Change in net position of governmental activities - Statement of Activities $ (4,016,455)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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MATAGORDA COUNTY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
DECEMBER 31,2016

Nonmajor
Internal Service
Fund
Insurance
Fund
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 662,090
Other receivables 10,836
Total Assets $ 672,926
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 831
Claims payable 125,920
Deferred revenue 135,815
Total Liabilities 262,566
NET POSITION
Unrestricted 410,360
Total net position $ 410,360

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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MATAGORDA COUNTY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND NET POSITION - INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

OPERATING REVENUES
Employer contributions
Employee contributions
Retiree/Cobra contributions
Special district contributions

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative expenses
Retiree premiums
Claims expense
Prescriptions

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interest revenue

Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)

Change in Net Position

Total net position - beginning
Total net position - ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Nonmajor
Internal Service
Fund

Insurance
Fund

3,070,813
202,620
107,331
177,418

3,558,182

547,090
340,936
2,288,072
770,033

3,946,131

(387,949)

$

4,029
4,029

(383,920)

794,280

410,360



MATAGORDA COUNTY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

Nonmajor
Internal Service
Fund
Insurance
Fund
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Cash received from interfund services provided $ 3,211,232

Cash received from external users 308,576

Cash payments for administration (918,332)

Cash payments for claims (3,066,715)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (465,239)
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Interfund loan -

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-capital Financing Activities -
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACIVITIES:

Net Cash Provided (Used) for Capital & Related Financing Activities -
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Interest and dividends on investments 4,029
Net Cash Provided (Used) for Investing Activities 4,029
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (461,210)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 1,123,300
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $ 662,090

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPEARTING ACTIVITIES:
Operating Income (Loss) $ (387,949)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities
Change in Assets and Liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 23,827
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses 27,819
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (58,125)
Increase (decrease) in interfund balance -
Increase (decrease) in claims payable (8,610)
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue (62,201)
Total Adjustments (77,290)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ (465,239)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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MATAGORDA COUNTY
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

DECEMBER 31,2016

Agency
Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,665,326
Total Assets $ 3,665,326
LIABILITIES
Due to other governments $ 955,869
Due to others 2,709,457
Total Liabilities 3,665,326
NET POSITION
Unrestricted -
Total Net Position $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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MATAGORDA COUNTY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

A

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

1. Description of government-wide financial statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities)
report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the government. All fiduciary activities are reported
only in the fund financial statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions, are reported separately from business- type
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges to external customers for support.

2. Reporting entity

Matagorda County was established in 1836 by the Republic of Texas. Commissioners elected from each of
four precincts serve as the governing body with the elected County Judge as the head of this body. The
Commissioners and County Judge oversee all functions of general government applicable to the County as
provided by state statutes.

The County's basic financial statements include the accounts of all its operations. The County evaluated
whether any other entity should be included in these financial statements using the criteria as set forth in
GASB Statement No. 14, "The Financial Reporting Entity." Based on these criteria, the County has no
component units. Additionally, the County is not a component unit of any other reporting entity as defined by
the GASB Statement.

3. Basis of presentation — government-wide financial statements

While separate government-wide and fund financial statements are presented, they are Interrelated. The
governmental activities column incorporates data from governmental funds and internal service funds.
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds,
even though the latter are excluded from the government- wide financial statements. As a general rule, the
effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government- wide financial statements. The County
allocates indirect expenses in the statement of activiies based on the prior year functional totals at the
government-wide level.

4. Basis of presentation — fund financial statements

The fund financial statements provide information about the government's funds, including its fiduciary funds.
Separate statements for each fund category— governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary - are presented. The
emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental funds, each displayed in a separate column. All
remaining governmental funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. Major individual governmental
funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

The government reports the following major governmental funds

The general fund is the government’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of
the general government, except those accounted for in another fund.

The CDBG Disaster Recovery fund is used to account for the receipts and disbursements related to the
Texas Community Development grant for recovery from residentially declared disasters to rebuild the
affected areas and provide crucial seed money to start the recovery process.

Additionally, the County reports the following fund types:
Internal service funds account for health benefits provided to County employees, retirees and dependents.

Contributions to the fund consist of charges to the participating entities for covered employees along with
contributions from employees and retirees.
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The agency fund accounts for District Clerk, County Clerk and Inmate trust funds held for the benefit of others
and the Tax Assessor Collector funds collected on behalf of others.

During the course of operations the County has activity between funds for various purposes. Any residual
balances outstanding at year end are reported as due from/to other funds and advances to/from other funds.
While these balances are reported in fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the
preparation of the government-wide financial statements. Balances between the funds included in
governmental activities (i.e., the governmental and internal service funds) are eliminated so that only the net
amount is included as internal balances in the governmental activities column.

Further, certain activity occurs during the year involving transfers of resources between funds. In fund financial
statements these amounts are reported at gross amounts as transfers in/out. While reported in fund financial
statements, certain eliminations are made in the preparation of the government-wide financial statements.
Transfers between the funds included in governmental activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is
included as transfers in the governmental activities column.

5. Measurement focus and basis of accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement focus and
basis of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being measured such as current
financial resources or economic resources. The basis of accounting indicates the timing of transactions or
events for recognition in the financial statements.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for
which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements
imposed by the provider have been met.

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the County
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt
service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences, and claims and judgments,
are recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures
in governmental funds. Issuance of long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other
financing sources.

Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are
all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal
period. Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been
incurred and all other eligibility requirements have been met, and the amount is received during the period or
within the availability period for this revenue source (within 60 days of year end). All other revenue items are
considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the County.

The proprietary fund is reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. The agency fund has no measurement focus but utilizes the accrual basis of accounting for
reporting its assets and liabilities.

6. Budgetary information
Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for the
general fund and following special revenue funds: district attorney legal/law, sheriff & jail discretionary, county

clerk presevation & automation, countywide records management preservation, courthouse security, justice
court technology, district clerk records management preservation and county & district court technology. Other
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special revenue funds do not have appropriated budgets since other means control the use of these resources
(e.g., grant awards and endowment requirements) and sometimes span a period of more than one fiscal year.

The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, department and category. The department heads may make
transfers of appropriations within a category; however, transfers of appropriations between categories require
the approval of Commissioners Court. The legal level of budgetary control (i.e., the level at which
expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations) is the category level.

Appropriations in all budgeted funds lapse at the end of the fiscal year. Encumbrances are commitments
related to unperformed (executory) contracts for goods or services (i.e., purchase orders, contracts, and
commitments) Encumbrance accounting is utilized to the extent necessary to assure effective budgetary control
and accountability and to facilitate effective cash planning and control. While all appropriations and
encumbrances lapse at year end, the four precinct unexpended budgets in the general fund are
re-appropriated and become part of the subsequent year's budget pursuant to action by Commissioners Court.

7. Assets, liabilities, deferred outflows/inflows of resources, and net position/fund balance

Cash and cash equivalents

The County’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Investments

Investments for the County are reported at fair value (generally based on quoted market prices) except for the
position in Government Investment Pool (Pool). In accordance with state law, the Pool operates in
conformity with all of the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission's (SEC) Rule 2a7 as
promulgated under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended. Accordingly, the Pool qualifies as
a 2a7-like pool and is reported at the net asset value per share (which approximates fair value) even though it
is calculated using the amortized cost method. The Pool is subject to regulatory oversight by the State
Treasurer, although it is not registered with the SEC.

The Public Funds Investment Act and local policy authorizes the District to invest in obligations of the US Treasury,
certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements, commercial paper, mutual funds and public funds investment pools.
Investments for the District are reported at fair value. Public funds investment pools operate in accordance with
appropriate state laws and regulations. The reported value of the pool is the same as the fair value of the pool
shares.

Prepaid items

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid
items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements. The cost of prepaid items is recorded as
expenditures or expenses when consumed rather than when purchased.

Capital assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g. roads, bridges and
similar items), are reported in the governmental activities column in the government-wide financial statements.
Capital assets, except for infrastructure assets, are defined by the County as assets with an initial, individual
cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year.

In the case of the initial capitalization of general infrastructure assets (i.e., those reported by governmental
activities), the County chose to include items from 1980 forward as permitted by GASB. The County was able
to estimate the historical cost for the initial reporting of these assets through back trending (i.e., estimating the
current replacement cost of the infrastructure to be capitalized and using an appropriate price-level index to
deflate the cost to the acquisition year or estimated acquisition year). As the County constructs or acquires
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additional capital assets each period, including infrastructure assets, they are capitalized and reported at
historical cost. The reported value excludes normal maintenance and repairs which are essentially amounts
spent in relation to capital assets that do not increase the capacity or efficiency of the item or increase its
estimated useful life. Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation.

Land and construction in progress are not depreciated. The other property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure
of the primary government are depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful
lives:

Estimated
Asset Class Useful Lives
Infrastructure 15-40
Buildings 40-60
Improvements 10-20
Vehicles & office equipment 3-8
Other Equipment 5-20

Deferred outflows/inflows of resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a
consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of
resources (expense/ expenditure) until then. The County has one item that qualifies for reporting in this category
The deferred outflows of resources calculated in the actuarial pension study required by GASB 68 and the current
year pension payments are reported in the government-wide statement of net position.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
infow of resources (revenue) until that time. The District has two items that qualify for reporting in this
category. The items unavailable" and unearned" revenue are reported in the governmental funds balance
sheet and only "unearned" in the government-wide statement of net position. The "unavailable" source
represents the uncollected delinquent taxes receivable while the "unearned" represents the October 1 tax levy
used to finance next years budget. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the
period that the amounts become available and earned for governmental funds and earned for
government-wide.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
Matagorda County Drainage District #1 Employees Pension Plan (Plan) and additions to/deductions from the
Plan's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Plan. For this
purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and
payable accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a
consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of
resources (expense/ expenditure) until then. The County does not have any items that qualifies for reporting in
this category.

Net position flow assumption

Sometimes the County will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted bond or
grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted - net
position and unrestricted - net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, a
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flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the
County’s policy to consider restricted — net position to have been depleted before unrestricted — net position
is applied.

Fund balance flow assumptions

Sometimes the County will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and unrestricted resources
(the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance). In order to calculate the amounts to report as
restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance in the governmental fund financial statements a
flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the
County’s policy to consider restricted fund balance to have been depleted before using any of the components
of unrestricted fund balance. Further, when the components of unrestricted fund balance can be used for the
same purpose, committed fund balance is depleted first, followed by assigned fund balance. Unassigned fund
balance is applied last.

Fund balance policies

Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the nature of any limitations
requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The County itself can establish limitations on the use of
resources through either a commitment (committed fund balance) or an assignment (assigned fund balance).

The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes
determined by a formal action of the County's highest level of decision-making authority. The Commissioners
Court is the highest level of decision-making authority for the County that can, by adoption of a resolution prior
to the end of the fiscal year, commit fund balance. Once adopted, the limitation imposed by the resolution
remains in place until a similar action is taken, the adoption of a resolution to remove or revise the limitation.

Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the County for specific
purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as committed. Although Commissioners Court has not
authorized another to assign fund balance, they may assign fund balance as it does when appropriating fund
balance to cover a gap between estimated revenue and appropriations in the subsequent year's appropriated
budget. Unlike commitments, assignments generally only exist temporarily. In other words, an additional action
does not normally have to be taken for the removal of an assignment. Conversely, as discussed above, an
additional action is essential to either remove or revise a commitment.

The unassigned fund balance represents spendable net resources that have not been restricted, committed,
or assigned to specific purposes. The general fund is the only fund that reports a positive fund balance
amount. In other governmental funds, it is not appropriate to report a positive unassigned fund balance
amount. However, in governmental funds other than the general fund, if expenditures incurred for specific
purposes exceed the amounts that are restricted, committed, or assigned to those purposes.

8. Revenues and expenditures/expenses

Program revenues

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) fees, fines, and charges paid by the recipients of goods or
services offered by the programs and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational
or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. All taxes, including those dedicated for specific
purposes, and other internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program
revenues.

Property taxes
Property taxes are levied by October 1 on the assessed value listed as of the prior January 1 for all real and

business personal property in conformity with Subtitle E, Texas Property Tax Code. Taxes are due on receipt
of the tax bill and are delinquent if not paid before February 1 of the year following the year in which
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imposed. On January 1 of each year, a tax lien attaches to property to secure the payment of all taxes,
penalties, and interest ultimately imposed. Property tax revenues are considered available (1) when they
become due or past due and receivable within the current period and (2) when they are expected to be
collected during a 60-day period after the close of the fiscal year.

Compensated absences

It is the County's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation benefits, which are
eligible for payment upon separation from government service. The liability for such leave is reported as
incurred in the government-wide financial statements. A liability for those amounts is recorded in the
governmental funds only if the liability has matured as a result of employee resignations or retirements.

Accumulated sick leave lapses when employees leave the employ of the County and, upon separation from service,
no monetary obligation exists.

Proprietary funds operating and nonoperating revenues and expenses

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the internal service fund
are charges to the County and employees for health insurance. Operating expenses for the internal service fund
includes the cost of medical claims, prescriptions and administrative expenses. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

B. Deposits and Investments

Cash deposits with financial institutions

Custodial credit risk-deposits. In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the County's
deposits may not be returned to it. Consistent with the requirements of the Public Funds Collateral Act, it is the policy
of The County to require full collateralization of all County investments and funds on deposit with a depository bank,
other than investments, which are obligations of the U.S. government and its agencies and instrumentalities. In order
to anticipate market changes and provide a level of security for all funds, the collateralization level will be 102% of
market value of principal and accrued interest on the deposits or investments less an amount insured by the FDIC.
The County's cash deposits at December 31, 2016 were entirely covered by FDIC insurance or by pledged collateral
held by the County's agent bank in the County's name.

Investments:

All investments made by the County were within the guidelines provided in Government Code 10 (Chapter 2256), Public
Funds Investment Act (short title), and subject to such other restrictions as may be imposed by the Commissioners Court
by resolution or order, the Commissioners Court of Matagorda County, Texas.

The County's investment at December 31, 2016 are shown below.

Weighted Avg

Investment or Investment Type Maturity in yrs Rating Fair Value Portfolio %

Certificates of Deposit 0.39 FDIC $ 1,716,036 10.66%

State Agencies 0.11  AA+ 481,368 2.98%

US Agencies 171 AA+ 7,479,887 46.45%

US Agencies 0.15 Not Rated 657,904 4.09%

Total Investments 10,335,195

Money Market Funds (included in cash) 0.00 FDIC 5,767,728 35.82%

2.36 $ 16,102,923 100.00%

35



MATAGORDA COUNTY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

Analysis of specific deposit and investment risks:

The District categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierachy established by generally accepted
accounting principles. The hierachy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the
asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other
observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. The District values its investments using Level
Analysis of specific deposit and investment risks:

GASB Statement No. 40 requires a determination as to whether the District was exposed to the following specific
investment risks at year end and if so, the reporting of certain related disclosures:

Credit Risk - the risk that an issurer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfil its obligations. It is the policy
of the County to only invest in securities meeting the minimum rating by the Public Funds Investment Act and local
policy. The Investment Officer will monitor, on at least a weekly basis, the credit rating and should that rating fall
below accepted levels; the Investment Officer will immediately advise the County of the loss of rating and the
possible loss of principal. The Investment Officer and the County shall take all prudent measures consistent with
this policy to liquidate any investment that does not have at least the minimum required rating.

Interest Rate Risk - the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.
The County limits its exposure to interest rate risk by diversifying its investments by security type and institution.
County policy will be that the maximum allowable stated maturity of an individual investment for operating funds
shall not exceed five years, unless a temporary extension of maturities is approved by the Board of Directors. The
maximum average maturity shall be two years.

Concentration of Credit Risk - the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government's investment in a single
user. Invested funds shall be diversified to minimize risk or loss resulting from over-concentration of assets in a
specific maturity, specific issuer, or specified class of securities. The asset allocation in the portfolio should, however,
be flexible depending upon the outlook for the economy and the securities markets. Diversification strategies shall be
established and reviewed. annually. At a minimum, diversification standards by security type and issuer

shall be:

Security Type Max % of Portfolio
US Obligations Not to exceed 80%
US Agencies/Instrumentalities Not to exceed 80%
State Obligations Not to exceed 80%
State Agencies/Instrumentalities Not to exceed 80%
Certificates of Deposits (including Brokered CDs) Not to exceed 40%
Commercial Paper Not to exceed 25%
Repurchase Agreements Not to exceed 40%
Money Market Funds 100%
Local Government Investment Pools 100%

C. Receivables

Amounts are aggregated into a single accounts receivable (net of allowance for uncollectibles) line for certain funds
and aggregated columns. Below is the detail of receivables for the major funds and the nonmajor governmental
funds in the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts:

Inter-Gov'tal Nonmajor
General Grants Governmental Totals

Taxes $ 15,882,698 $ - $ 181,851 $ 16,064,549
Less allowance (151,581) -- (428) (152,009)

$ 15,731,117 $ - $ 181,423 $ 15,912,540

Other Receivables $ 1,186 $ - $ 1,012 $ 2,198
Taxes and Tax Statements 2,307,496 - - 2,307,496
Grants - 746,699 23,886 770,585
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Insurance Recoveries

Fines and Fees 9,531,998 - - 9,531,998
Less allowance (7,827,517) - - (7,827,517)
$ 4,013,163 $ 746,699 $ 24,898 $ 4,784,760

With the exception of property taxes, fines and fees, all receivables are expected to be collected within one year.

Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2016, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Governmental activities: Balances Increase Decreases Balances
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 1,349,101 $ 7,250 $ -- $ 1,356,351
Construction in Progress 81,571 807,028 - 888,599
1,430,672 814,278 - 2,244,950
Capital assets being depreciated:
Infrastructure 45,485,406 855,695 879,245 45,461,856
Buildings and improvements 13,815,272 652,212 -- 14,467,484
Vehicles and equipment 11,905,218 727,227 372,793 12,259,652
Total capital assets being depreciated 71,205,896 2,235,134 1,252,038 72,188,992
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Infrastructure 34,239,165 2,046,746 194,932 36,090,979
Buildings and improvements 6,018,542 298,323 (4,005) 6,320,870
Vehicles and equipment 7,761,607 859,217 403,553 8,217,271
Total accumulated depreciation 48,019,314 3,204,286 594,480 50,629,120
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 23,186,582 (969,152) 657,558 21,559,872
Governmental activities capital assets, 1$ $ 24617254 $ (154,874) $ 657,558 $ 23,804,822

Depreciation expense of $3,204,286 and net asset disposals of $657,558 were charged to functions as follows:

General government $ 195,278
Justice system 180,981
Public safety 189,357
Corrections and rehabilitation 114,011
Health and human services 66,590
Community and economic development 61,471
Infrastructure and environmental services 3,054,157

$ 3,861,845

Interfund Balances and Activity

The composition of interfund balances as of December 31, 2016 is as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

General Nonmajor governmental funds  $ 10,498

The outstanding balances between funds result mainly from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and
services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and (3)
payments between funds are made. With the exception of $50 which represents imprest funds, all interfund balances

are expected to be collected in the subsequent year.
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F. Long-Term Obligations

Long-term obligations include debt and other long-term liabilities. Changes in long-term obligations for the year ended
December 31, 2016, are as follows:

Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Increases Decreases Balance One Year

Governmental activities:
Certificates of Obligation $ 2,930,000 $ - $ 180,000 $ 2,750,000 105,000
Capital leases™ 1,359,864 - 415,433 944,431 351,253
Compensated absences * 349,695 253,536 227,851 375,380 70,190
Net OPEB Obligation* 8,810,570 2,479,406 1,329,276 9,960,700 -
Net Pension Liability** 3,714,767 3,822,138 916,055 6,620,850 -
Issuance Premium 57,310 - 3,016 54,294 -
Total governmental activities $ 17,222,206 $ 6,555,080 $ 3,071,631 $ 20,705,655 $ 526,443

* The funds typically used to liquidate other long-term liabilities in the past are as follows:
** Beginning balance restated for the effects of GASB 68, see footnote Q.

Liability Activity Type  Fund

Capital leases Governmental General
Compensated absences Governmental General
Net OPEB Obligation Governmental General
Net pension liability Governmental General

Debt service requirements on long-term debt at December 31, 2016, are as follows:

Certificates of obligation of $1,515,000, issued August 15, 2006 bearing interest at 4.69% and maturing March 15, 2016
were issued for the purpose of jail expansion, and was paid off in 2016.

Certificates of obligation of $2,750,000, issued August 24, 2015 bearing interest at 3.0%-3.50% and maturing March 15, 2035
were issued for the purpose of county-wide improvements. This obligation has $2,750,000 balance at year-end.

Governmental Activities

Year Ending December 31, Principal Interest Total

2017 $ 105,000 $ 84,563 $ 189,563
2018 110,000 81,338 191,338
2019 115,000 77,963 192,963
2020 115,000 74,513 189,513
2021 120,000 70,288 190,288
2022-2026 675,000 296,815 971,815
2027-2031 780,000 187,777 967,777
2032-2036 730,000 51,757 781,757
Totals $ 2,750,000 $ 925,014 $ 3,675,014

G. Lease Obligations

The County entered into lease agreements as lessee for financing the acquisition of road equipment valued at
$755,600. The equipment has a twenty year estimated useful life with year to date depreciation of $58,843.
These lease agreements qualify as a capital lease for accounting purposes and, therefore, have been recorded at the
present value of future minimum lease payments as of the inception date.

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments as of December
31, 2015 were as follows:
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Governmental
Year ending December 31, Activities
2017 $ 378,828
2018 264,144
2019 263,808
2020 95,003
Total minimum lease payments 1,001,783
Less: amount representing interest (57,352)
Present value of minimum lease payments $ 944,431

H. Risk Management

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, damage or destruction of assets, errors and
omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. During fiscal year 2016, the County obtained general
liability coverage at a cost that is considered to be economically justifiable by joining together with other
governmental entities via interlocal agreement and forming a risk pool ("Pool"). The Pool is a legally separate
entity operating as a common risk management and insurance program and is administered by TriStar Risk
Management. The Pool provides third party liability, public officials liability, automobile liability, workers
compensation, blanket crime coverage and property coverage. The County pays an annually determined premium
to the pool for its share of the above insurance coverage. The agreement for the formation of the Pool provides
that the Pool will be self-sustaining through member premiums and will reinsure through commercial companies for
claims in excess of acceptable risk levels; however, each category of coverage has its own level of reinsurance.
Latest audited financial statements for the self-insured pool can be obtained by contacting PO Box 327, Bay City,
Tx 77404-0327.

The County continues to carry insurance for other risks of loss through a group purchasing cooperative. There were
no significant reductions in commercial insurance coverage in the past fiscal year and settled claims resulting from
these risks have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

Pension Plan

General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan Description

TCDRS is a statewide, agent multiple-employer, public-employee retirement system. The system serves 677 actively
participating counties and districts throughout Texas. Each employer maintains its own customized plan of benefits. Plan
provisions are adopted by the governing body of each employer, within the options available in the TCDRS Act. Because
of that, employers have the flexibility and local control to select benefits and pay for those benefits based on their needs
and budgets. TCDRS in the aggregate issues a comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) on a calendar year
Basis. The CAFR is available upon written request from the TCDRS Board of Trustees at P.O. Box 2034, Austin,
Texas 78768-2034.

Each employer has a defined benefit plan that functions similarly to a cash balance plan. The assets of the plans are
pooled for investment purposes, but each employer's plan assets may be used only for the payment of benefits to the
members of that employer's plan. In accordance with Texas law, it is intended that the pension plan be construed and
administered in a manner that the retirement system will be considered qualified under Section 401(a) of the Internal
Revenue Code. All employees (except temporary staff) of a participating employer must be enrolled in the plan.

Benefits
The Plan provides retirement and disability benefits. Employees with 8 years of continuous service are eligible to retire at
age 60, at any age with 30 years of services or when age plus years of service total 75. The service or disability retirement

benefit is calculated based on the employee's account balance and employer matching as selected by the employer, and
may include other employer provided funds. Current deposits are matched at a ratio of 2:1, or $2.00 for every $1.00. The
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employee's account and employer provided funds are combined and converted to a lifetime annuity. The retiree receives
a payment every month for the rest of his or her life by choosing from one of seven actuarially equivalent payment options.
Disability retirement benefits are determined in the same manner as retirement benefits.

Employees covered by benefit terms

At December 31, 2015, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 187
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 146
Active employees 231

564

Contributions

TCDRS is a model for responsible, disciplined funding. TCDRS does not receive any state funding. As an agent,
multiple-employer plan, each participating employer in the system funds its plan independently. A combination of three
elements funds each employer's plan: employee deposits, employer contributions and investment income.

The deposit rate for employees is 7% of compensation, as adopted by the Board of Directors.
Participating employers are required to contribute at actuarially determined rates to ensure adequate funding for
each employer's plan. Employer contribution rates are determined annually and approved by the TCDRS Board of
Trustees. The County contribution rate was 14.77% for 2015 and 14.80% for 2016.
Investment income funds a large part of the benefits employees earn.
Pursuant to state law, employers participating in the system must pay 100% of their actuarially determined required
contributions on an annual basis. Each employer has the opportunity to make additional contributions in excess of its
annual required contribution rate either by adopting an elected rate that is higher than the required rate or by making
additional contributions on an ad hoc basis. Employers may make additional contributions to pay down their liabilities
faster, pre-fund benefit enhancements and/or buffer against future adverse experience.
In addition, employers annually review their plans and may adjust benefits and costs based on their local needs and
budgets. Although accrued benefits may not be reduced, employers may reduce future benefit accruals and immediately
reduce costs.
Net Pension Liability (Asset

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability in the December 31, 2015 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial

assumptions:
Inflation Rate 3.00%
Long-term expected Invest Rate of Return 8.10%

The annual salary increase rates assumed for individual members vary by length of service and by entry-age
group. The annual rates consist of a general wage inflation component of 3.5% (made up of 3.0% inflation and
0.5% productivity increase assumptions) and a merit, promotion and longevity component that on average
approximates 1.4% per year for a career employee.

Mortality rates were based on the following: (a) depositing members - the RP-2000 Active Employee Mortality
Table for males with a two-year set-forward and the RP-2000 Active Employee Mortality Table for females with
a four-year setback, both with the projection scale AA; (b) service retirees, beneficiaries and non-depositing
members - the RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table with the projection scale AA, with a one-year set-forward for
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males and no age adjustment for females; and (c) disabled retirees RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Table for
males with no age adjustment and RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Table for females with a two-year set-forward,
both with the projection scale AA.

The long-term expected rate of return on TCDRS assets is determined by adding expected inflation to
expected long-term real returns, and reflecting expected volatility and correlation. The capital market
assumptions and information shown below are provided by TCDRS' investment consultant, Cliffwater LLC. The
numbers shown are based on January 2016 information for a 7-10 year time horizon.

Note that the valuation assumption for long-term expected return is re-assessed at a minimum of every four
years, and is set based on a 30-year time horizon; the most recent analysis was performed in 2013. See
Milliman’s TCDRS Investigation of Experience report for the period January 1, 2009 - December 31, 2013 for
more details.
Geometric Real
Rate of Return

Target (expected minus
Asset Class and Benchmark Allocation Inflation)
U.S. Equities - Dow Jones U.S. Total Stock Market Index 14.50% 5.45%
Private Equity - Cambridge Associates Global Private Equity & Venture Capital 14.00% 8.45%
Index
Gobal Equities - MSCI World (net) Index 1.50% 5.75%
International Equities - Developed - 50% MSCI World ex USA (net) + 50% MSCI 10.00% 5.45%
World ex USA 100% Hedged to USD (net) Index
International Equities - Emerging - 50% MSCI| EM Standard (net) Index + 50% 8.00% 6.45%
MSCI EM 100% Hedged to USD (net) Index
Investment Grade Bonds - Barclays Capital Agg Bond Index 3.00% 1.00%
High Yield Bonds - Citigroup High Yield Cash Pay Capped Index 3.00% 5.10%
Opportunistic Credit - Citigroup High Yield Cash Pay Capped Index 2.00% 5.09%
Direct Lending - Citigroup High Yield Cash Pay Capped Index 5.00% 6.40%
Distressed Debt - Citigroup High Yield Cash Pay Capped Index 3.00% 8.10%
REIT Equities - 67% FTSE NAREIT Equity REITs Index + 33% FRSE EPRA/ 3.00% 4.00%
NAREIT Global Real Estate Index
Master Limited Partnerships (MLPs) - Alerian MLP Index 3.00% 6.80%
Private Real Estate Partnerships - Cambridge Assoc Real Estate Index 5.00% 6.90%
Hedge Funds - Hedge Fund Research, Inc. (HFRI) Fund of Funds Comp Index 25.00% 5.25%
100.00% 80.19%

Discount Rate

The discount rate is the single rate of return that, when applied to all projected benefit payments results in an actuarial
present value of projected benefit payments equal to the total of the following:

1.

The actuarial present value of benefit payments projected to be made in future periods in which (a) the
amount of the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is projected to be greater than the benefit payments
that are projected to be made in that period and (b) pension plan assets up to that point are expected to be
invested using a strategy to achieve the long-term rate of return, calculated using the long-term expected rate
of return on pension plan investment.

The actuarial present value of projected benefit payments not included in (1), calculated using the municipal
bond rate.

Therefore, if plan investments in a given future year are greater than projected benefit payments in that year and are
invested such that they are expected to earn the long-term rate of return, the discount rate applied to projected
benefit payments in that year should be the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments. If future years exist
where this is not the case, then an index rate reflecting the yield on a 20-year, tax-exempt municipal bond should be
used to discount the projected benefit.
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The determination of a future date when plan investments are not sufficient to pay projected benefit payments is often
referred to as a depletion date projection. A depletion date projection compares projections of the pension plan's fiduciary
net position to projected benefit payments and aims to determine a future date, if one exists, when the fiduciary net
position is projected to be less than projected benefit payments. If an evaluation of the sufficiency of the projected
fiduciary net position e compared to projected benefit payments can be made with sufficient reliability without performing
a depletion date projection, alternative methods to determine sufficiency may be applied.

In order to determine the discount rate to be used by the employer we have used an alternative method to determine the
sufficiency of the fiduciary net position in all future years. Our alternative method reflects the funding requirements under
the employer’s funding policy and the legal requirements under the TCDRS Act.

1. TCDRS has a funding policy where the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) shall be amortized as a level
percent of pay over 20-year closed layered periods.

2. Under the TCDRS Act, the employer is legally required to make the contribution specified in the funding policy.

3. The employer's assets are projected to exceed its accrued liabilities in 20 years or less. When this
point is reached, the employer is still required to contribute at least the normal cost.

4. Any increased cost due to the adoption of a COLA is required to be funded over a period of 15 years, if applicable.

Based on the above, the projected fiduciary net position is determined to be sufficient compared to projected benefit
payments. Based on the expected level of cash flows and investment returns to the system, the fiduciary net position as a
percentage of total pension liability is projected to increase from its current level in future years.

Since the projected fiduciary net position is projected to be sufficient to pay projected benefit payments in all future years,
the discount rate for purposes of calculating the total pension liability and net pension liability of the employer is equal to
the long-term assumed rate of return on investments. This long-term assumed rate of return should be net of investment
expenses, but gross of administrative expenses for GASB 68 purposes. Therefore, we have used a discount rate of
8.10%. This rate reflects the long-term assumed rate of return on assets for funding purposes of 8.00%, net of all
expenses, increased by 0.10% to be gross of administrative expenses.

Changes in Net Pension Liability (Asset)

Increase (Decrease)

Total Pension Fiduciary Net Position
Liability Net Postion Liability (Asset)
(@) (b) (@) - (b)
Balances as of December 31, 2014 $ 49,456,273 $ 45,741,506 $ 3,714,767
Changes for the year:
Service cost 1,061,295 - 1,061,295
Interest on total pension liability 3,949,923 - 3,949,923
Effect of plan changes (163,313) - (163,313)
Effect of economic/demographic gains or losses (710,572) - (710,572)
Effect of assumptions changes or inputs 559,506 - 559,506
Refund of contributions (156,470) (156,470) -
Benefit payments (2,712,077) (2,712,077) -
Administrative expenses - (32,500) 32,500
Member contributions - 592,700 (592,700)
Net investment income - 252,706 (252,706)
Employer contributions - 1,250,595 (1,250,595)
Other -- (272,745) 272,745
Balances as of December 31, 2015 $ 51284565 % 44,663,715 % 6,620,850
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Discount Rate Sensitivity Analysis

The following presents the net pension liability of the County, calculated using the discount rate of 8.10%, as well as what
the County net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower
(7.10%) or 1 percentage point higher (9.10%) than the current rate.

1% Decrease in Current 1% Increase in
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate

(7.10%) (8.10%) (9.10%)
Total pension liability $ 57,216,217 $ 51,284,564 $ 46,302,827
Fiduciary net position 44,663,715 44,663,714 44,663,715
Net pension liability (asset) $ 12,552,502 $ 6,620,850 $ 1,639,112

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions.

For the year ended December 31, 2016 the County recognized pension expense of $730,484. At December 31, 2016, the
County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following
sources:

Deferred Deferred
Qutflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 314,814 $ 532,929
Changes in actuarial assumptions 419,630 -
Difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments 3,075,646 -
Contributions paid to TCDRS subsequent to the measurement date 1,188,783 -
Total $ 4,998,873 $ 532,929

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended Pension

December 31 Exp Amount
2016 $ 916,055
2017 916,055
2018 758,648
2019 686,404
2020 -

Thereafter --

Other Postemployment Benefit (OBEB) Obligations

Plan Description

The County, through its substantive commitment to provide other post-employment benefits (OPEB), maintains a
single-employer defined benefit plan to provide certain postretirement healthcare benefits to all retired employees
who qualified under the Texas County District Retirement System and are currently receiving retirement (pension)
income. Such benefits are not available to members' spouses or dependents; rather, only to former employees
as previously described. Specific details of the Plan include the provision of certain hospitalization, major medical
insurance and prescription drug coverage. These benefits are provided through insurance companies. The
County is under no statutory or contractual obligation to provide these postretirement healthcare benefits. Because
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the Plan consists solely of the County's firm commitment to provide OPEB through the payment of premiums on
behalf of its eligible retirees, no stand-alone financial report is either available or generated.

Funding Policy

The County pays the cost of the postemployment health care benefits for retirees during the life of the retiree. Retirees
may elect to continue health care benefits for their spouse and family at their own expense. Substantially all of the
government's employees may become eligible for these benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working for the
government. The plan is financed on a pay as you go basis.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The County's annual OPEB cost is calculated based on the annual required contribution (ARC) of the County, an amount
actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding
that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial
liabilities (or funding excess) over a period of 30 years. The following table illustrates the components of the County's
annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the Plan, and changes in the County's net OPEB
obligation:

Annual required contribution (ARC) $ 2,176,039
Interest on prior year net OPEB obligation 303,367
Amortization of prior year net OPEB obligation (430,076)
Total annual OPEB cost 2,049,330
Contributions made (899,200)

Increase in net OPEB obligation 1,150,130
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 8,810,570
Net OPEB obligation - end of year $ 9,960,700

The County's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the Plan, and the net OPEB
obligation for 2016, 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

Actual Percentage of Net OPEB

Fiscal Year Annual Employer Annual OPEB Obligation

Ended OPEB Cost Contribution ~ Cost Contributed  End of Year
12/31/14 $ 2,205,973 $ 726,505 33% $ 7,584,165
12/31/15 $ 2,049,330 $ 822,925 40% $ 8,810,570
12/31/16 $§ 2,049,330 $ 899,200 44% $ 9,960,700

Funding Status and Funding Progress

As of January 1, 2015, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the Plan was not funded. The actuarial present
value of accrued liability for past and future service benefits equaled $20,408,335 which represents 70.30% of the
present value of all projected benefits of $29,030,094. There were $0 in actuarial valued assets, resulting in an
unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of the same. The total payroll (annual payroll of active emloyees) was
$6,658,306 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll equaled 306.51%.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about
the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment,
mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the Plan and the
annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with
past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as
RSI following the notes to the financial statements, is to present multiyear trend information about whether the
actuarial value of Plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for
benefits. However, because the County maintains no Plan assets, information relative to Plan asset required
disclosures is not applicable.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive Plan (the Plan as understood by
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the County and Plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the
historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the County and Plan members to that Point. There are no
legal or contractual funding limitations that would potentially affect the projection of benefits for financial
accounting purposes. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce
the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities, consistent with the long-term perspective of the
calculations.

The annual required contribution rate for the plan was determined as part of the January 1, 2013 actuarial valuation using
the following methods and assumptions:

Actuarial cost method Project unit cost
Amortization method Level, open
Remaining amortization 30 years
Inflation rate 3%
Asset valuation method None
Investment return 1%
Projected salary increases None

Cost of living adjustments None
Healthcare cost trend rate 9%
Discount rate 4%

K. Health Care Coverage

During the year ended December 31, 2014 employees of the County were covered by a health insurance plan (the
Plan). The County contributed monthly per employee, spouse, child and family to the Plan. Employees,
at their option, authorized payroll withholdings to pay contributions for dependents in excess of the County
contribution. All contributions were paid to a third party administrator, acting on behalf of the self-funded
pool. The Plan was authorized by Article 3.51-2, Texas Insurance Code and was documented by contractual
agreement. The contract between the County and the third party administrator is renewable October 1, 2017,
and terms of coverage and contribution costs are included in the contractual provisions. In accordance with state
statute, the County was protected against unanticipated catastrophic individual or aggregate loss by stop-loss
coverage carried through Texas Association of Counties Health Employee Benefit Program and Blue Cross Blue
Shield of Texas, a commercial insurer licensed or eligible to do business in Texas in accordance with the Texas
Insurance Code. Stop-loss coverage was in effect for individual claims exceeding $100,000 and for aggregate
loss. Other governmental entities and/or their employees contributed to the self-insurance pool which was operated
under contractual provisions of Article 4413(32c), Interlocal Cooperation Act. Each member to the extent its benefit
plan is self-insured, remains responsible for the payment of benefits under the benefit plan in the event HEBP fails
to make such payments.

The internal service fund is funded by charges to the County’s other funds and other governmental units and is
based upon a predetermined fixed amount per employee, spouse, child and family. Liabilities of the fund are
reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.
The County considers claims paid in the three months following the fiscal year end to be a reasonable estimate of
claims liability.

Changes in the balance of claims liabilities during the past three years are as follows:

2014 2015 2016
Unpaid claims, beginning $ 157,736 $ 157,736 $ 134,530
Claims incurred 1,913,435 1,988,120 2,236,363
Claims paid (1,957,151) (2,011,326) (2,244,973)
Unpaid claims, ending $ 114,020 $ 134,530 $ 125,920
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L. Contingencies

The County participates in various federal grant programs, the principal of which are subject to program compliance
audits pursuant to the Single Audit Act as amended. Accordingly, the government's compliance with applicable grant
requirements will be established at a future date. The amount of expenditures which may be disallowed by the
granting agencies cannot be determined at this time, although the government anticipates such amounts, if any, will
be immaterial.

The County is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently determinable,
in the opinion of the County's legal counsel, the resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on
the financial condition of the County.

The Appraisal District is currently defendant in a property valuation lawsuit for 2014 taxable values with Tres Palacios
Gas Storage, LLC. The remaining uear has not been settled at this time. It is the opinion of counsel the result could
have a material fiscal impact on the County, but the amount is indeterminable at this time.

M.  Closure and Postclosure Care Cost

State and federal laws and regulations require the County to place a final cover on its landfill site when it stops
accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions. The County stopped receiving waste
prior to October 9, 1993 at over 90% capacity used and officially closed in July, 2007. Post-closure costs are subject
to change resulting from inflation, deflation, technology and/or changes in applicable laws and regulations and are
expected to be nominal for the next five years after certification of the completion of closure. Therefore, no
liability has been recorded in these financial statements.

N. Interfund Transfers

During the year, nonmajor governmental funds transferred $27,500 in resources to the general fund to reimburse for
supplemental pay using specially earmarked funds and the general fund transferrred $7,000 to nonmajor
governmental funds to supplement resources.

O. Jointly Governed and Related Organizations

1 The County is accountable for the following related organizations in that they appoint the Commissioners:
Matagorda County Conservation & Reclamation District
Matagorda County Drainage District No. 1
Matagorda County Drainage District No. 2
Matagorda County Drainage District No. 3
Matagorda County Drainage District No. 4
Matagorda County Hospital District

The County is not financially accountable for the above organizations nor does the County's accountability for
these organizations extend significantly beyond making the appointments. Accordingly, financial information
for these entities is excluded from the County's financial statements. Latest audited financial statements for
these entities may be obtained by writing 1700 7th Street, Room 302, Bay City, Tx 77414-5091.

2 The Adult Probation division is operated as a multi-county department doing business as 23rd Judicial District
Community Supervision and Correction Department (CSCD) Matagorda and Wharton Counties. The CSCD
services both Matagorda and Wharton Counties with each county providing required office space for the
operations of the Department and substantially all of the Department's funding provided by the State.

The Department's board consists of the two District Judges for Matagorda and Wharton Counties. Matagorda
County is not able to appoint a voting majority to the Department's board or otherwise impose its will.  The
Department is not fiscally dependent on Matagorda County since the County's role is ministerial in nature.
As a result, the Department is considered to be legally separate from Matagorda County and thus not a part of
the reporting entity of Matagorda County.
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P.  Fund Balance
In the November 28, 2011 mintues, the Commissioners agreed to commit fund balances for each of the four
precincts unspent budgeted funds at year end to be added to the subsequent years approved budget upon
completion of the audit.

The following schedule presents details of restricted net position for legislative purposes at December 31, 2016:

Other
Governmental

Funds

Restricted for legislative purposes:

District attorney legal/law $ 112,577
Sheriff & jail discretionary 58,099
County clerk preservation & automation 514,136
Countywide records management preservation 32,021
Courthouse security 61,577
Justice court technology 16,918
District clerk records management preservation 60,008
County & district court technology 54,320
Historical commission 9,220
$ 918,876

Q. Property Tax Abatement

The County is authorized to provide tax abatement benefits in accordance with the Texas Property Redevelopment,
and Tax abatement Act, chapter 312 of the Texas Tax code.

The County entered into property tax abatement agreements for the purpose of attracting or retaining businesses, and
creating 600 full-time jobs by December 31, 2017. Tax abatements on property tax was granted on assessed land
valued at $3,891,608 for 2013 tax year by the County to a company for twenty-five (25) years, and granted for
commitment of building a new steel pipe production plant valued at a minimum of $1.314 billion in value. If
agreement commenced as intended, the abatement period would be for the property tax years 2015 through 2040.
The County agreed to recapture a prorated amount of abated taxes if these conditions are not met through the
"Claw-back" payment clause. The County's agreement determines the percentage amount and duration of the tax
abatement, which is not to exceed twenty-five years. In the case of the company exceeding the Job target, the
District committed to providing an additional "Surplus Job Credit" incentive to the company.

For the property tax period ended December 31, 2016, the County abated property taxes totaling $1,443,353 under
this agreement, which is the percentage the County considers to be material for purposes of individual disclosure:

Percent Property
Type Business Purpose Abated Value
Pipe Manufacturing To create 600 jobs and 99% $ 343,671,852

Company build a $1.314 Billion steel
pipe plant in the district
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MATAGORDA COUNTY

GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines
Investment income
Miscellaneous

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES
GENERAL GOVERNMENT

County Judge:
Personnel
Operating costs

Total County Judge

Commissioners Court
Personnel
Operating costs

Total Commissioners Court

Information Services:
Personnel
Operating costs
Capital outlay

Total Information Services

County Courthouse:
Personnel
Operating costs

Total County Courthouse

County Office Building:
Operating costs
Capital outlay

Total County Office Building

Unallocable by Department:
Insurance
Appraisal fees
Retiree Insurance
Other costs
Total Unallocable by Department

County Clerk:
Personnel
Operating costs

Total County Clerk

Page 1 of 8

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 16,316,786 $ 16,316,786 $ 16,545,809 $ 229,023
790,100 790,100 770,097 (20,003)
332,050 1,693,187 810,442 (882,745)
4,059,451 4,084,181 4,168,743 84,562
375,000 375,000 429,327 54,327
150,000 150,000 169,004 19,004
84,000 259,717 310,611 50,894
22,107,387 23,668,971 23,204,033 (464,938)
208,540 213,540 213,736 (196)
8,300 9,100 8,411 689
216,840 222,640 222,147 493
40,364 40,364 40,248 116
102,500 163,015 159,168 3,847
142,864 203,379 199,416 3,963
141,894 141,894 141,328 566
266,111 271,778 266,123 5,655
12,000 6,333 6,333 --
420,005 420,005 413,784 6,221
86,377 86,377 82,147 4,230
256,372 261,643 235,690 25,953
342,749 348,020 317,837 30,183
110,800 110,800 95,165 15,635
- 412,095 157,945 254,150
110,800 522,895 253,110 269,785
104,099 95,159 87,622 7,537
44,155 46,018 46,018 --
267,365 275,322 348,000 (72,678)
248,547 19,528 202 19,326
664,166 436,027 481,842 (45,815)
352,608 357,608 361,678 (4,070)
34,000 30,000 26,414 3,586
386,608 387,608 388,092 (484)
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MATAGORDA COUNTY

GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

County Auditor:
Personnel
Operating costs
Capital outlay
Debt

Total County Auditor

Human Resources:
Personnel
Operating costs

Total Human Resources

County Treasurer:
Personnel
Operating costs
Total County Treasurer

Special Districts
Personnel
Operating costs

Total Special Districts

County Tax Assessor Collector:

Personnel
Operating costs

Total Tax Assessor Collector

Elections:
Personnel
Operating costs
Debt

Total Elections

TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT

JUSTICE SYSTEM

District Court:
Personnel
Operating costs

Total District Court

County Court:
Operating costs
Total County Court

Court Expenses:
Personnel
Operating costs

Total Court Expenses

Capital Trials
Operating costs

Page 2 of 8

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
440,714 373,508 366,997 6,511
22,400 19,600 17,913 1,687
-- 77,282 40,379 36,903
32,493 32,493 32,493 --
495,607 502,883 457,782 45,101
-- 171,875 152,926 18,949
- 14,300 12,749 1,551
- 186,175 165,675 20,500
151,203 157,107 157,428 (321)
12,575 15,005 15,287 (282)
163,778 172,112 172,715 (603)
1,949 -- -- --
1,550 - - -
3,499 -- -- --
583,577 583,577 537,693 45,884
78,900 78,900 68,323 10,577
22,934 35,563 31,886 3,677
27,000 43,101 43,862 (761)
95,0083 95,003 95,002 1
144,937 173,667 170,750 2,917
3,754,330 4,237,888 3,849,166 388,722
204,507 205,442 205,254 188
56,050 56,050 43,458 12,592
260,557 261,492 248,712 12,780
19,500 23,372 22,708 664
19,500 23,372 22,708 664
80,832 80,949 74,398 6,551
327,120 369,276 298,478 70,798
407,952 450,225 372,876 77,349
69,410 61,110 41,631 19,479
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MATAGORDA COUNTY

GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

Total Captial Trials

District Clerk:

Personnel
Operating costs

Total District Clerk

District Attorney:
Personnel
Operating costs

Total District Attorney

County Attorney:
Personnel
Operating costs

Total County Attorney

Justice of the Peace #1
Personnel
Operating costs

Total Justice of the Peace #1

Justice of the Peace #2
Personnel
Operating costs

Total Justice of the Peace #2

Justice of the Peace #3
Personnel
Operating costs

Total Justice of the Peace #3

Justice of the Peace #4
Personnel
Operating costs

Total Justice of the Peace #4

Justice of the Peace #6
Personnel
Operating costs

Total Justice of the Peace #6

Law Library:
Operating costs
Total Law Library

Child Support:
Personnel
Operating costs

Total Child Support

Juvenile Probation Board:
Personnel
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Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

69,410 61,110 41,631 19,479
288,789 289,789 282,261 7,528
21,450 20,450 19,773 677
310,239 310,239 302,034 8,205
602,425 621,633 618,983 2,650
62,750 80,111 58,722 21,389
665,175 701,744 677,705 24,039
235,016 233,516 231,859 1,657
17,925 19,577 20,061 (484)
252,941 253,093 251,920 1,173
161,059 160,559 161,863 (1,304)
10,800 12,500 12,163 337
171,859 173,059 174,026 (967)
161,572 158,576 156,231 2,345
22,380 27,672 23,999 3,673
183,952 186,248 180,230 6,018
155,935 159,535 159,012 523
8,750 8,750 7,388 1,362
164,685 168,285 166,400 1,885
125,579 128,779 121,820 6,959
8,740 8,740 7,759 981
134,319 137,519 129,579 7,940
30,559 30,559 24,417 6,142
6,550 7,000 6,862 138
37,109 37,559 31,279 6,280
21,000 21,000 19,208 1,792
21,000 21,000 19,208 1,792
53,763 53,763 51,113 2,650
3,200 3,200 2,369 831
56,963 56,963 53,482 3,481
37,506 47,306 47,155 151
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MATAGORDA COUNTY
GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

Total Juvenile Probation Board

Juvenile Probation:
Personnel
Operating costs

Total Juvenile Probation

Unallocable by Department:
Insurance
Appraisal fees
Autopsies
Retiree Insurance
Total unallocable by Department

TOTAL JUSTICE SYSTEM
PUBLIC SAFETY

Constable Precinct #1:
Personnel
Operating costs

Total Constable Precinct #1

Constable Precinct #2:
Personnel
Operating costs

Total Constable Precinct #2

Constable Precinct #3:
Personnel
Operating costs

Total Constable Precinct #3

Constable Precinct #4:
Personnel
Operating costs

Total Constable Precinct #4

Constable Precinct #6:
Personnel
Operating costs

Total Constable Precinct #6

County Sheriff:
Personnel
Operating costs
Capital outlay

Total County Sheriff

Department of Public Safety:
Operating costs
Total Department of Public Safety

Page 4 of 8

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
37,506 47,306 47,155 151
48,462 48,462 45,194 3,268
218,250 228,140 209,789 18,351
266,712 276,602 254,983 21,619
96,477 88,193 81,206 6,987
40,922 42,649 42,648 1
55,000 109,265 114,354 (5,089)
121,247 124,856 124,800 56
313,646 364,963 363,008 1,955
3,373,525 3,530,779 3,336,936 193,843
21,319 21,319 21,318 1
13,120 11,361 2,835 8,526
34,439 32,680 24,153 8,527
11,719 11,834 11,745 89
11,750 13,012 9,475 3,537
23,469 24,846 21,220 3,626
14,779 14,779 12,781 1,998
4,730 6,704 4,489 2,215
19,509 21,483 17,270 4,213
14,779 14,779 14,316 463
4,065 4,914 3,234 1,680
18,844 19,693 17,550 2,143
21,319 21,319 21,219 100
9,000 9,884 9,880 4
30,319 31,203 31,099 104
2,523,508 2,707,795 2,671,856 35,939
433,550 406,199 345,265 60,934
90,000 321,524 312,647 8,877
3,047,058 3,435,518 3,329,768 105,750
4,000 - - -
4,000 - - -
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MATAGORDA COUNTY

GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

Game Wardens:
Operating costs
Total Game Wardens

Fire Protection:
Operating costs
Total Fire Protection

Emergency Management:
Personnel
Operating costs
Capital outlay

Total Emergency Management

Unallocable by department:
Insurance
Appraisal fees
Retiree insurance

Total unallocable by department

TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY
CORRECTIONS & REHABILITATION

County Jail:
Personnel
Operating costs

Total County Jail

Adult Probation:
Operating costs
Total Adult Probation

Unallocable by department:
Insurance
Appraisal fees
Retiree insurance

Total unallocable by department

TOTAL CORRECTIONS & REHABILITATION
HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES

Health Department:
Personnel
Operating costs

Total Health Department

Animal Control:
Personnel
Operating costs

Total Animal Control
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Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
33,400 33,400 33,378 22
33,400 33,400 33,378 22
49,000 60,625 60,244 381
49,000 60,625 60,244 381
134,799 134,799 134,838 (39)
37,020 215,273 161,063 54,210
-- 52,061 52,061 --
171,819 402,133 347,962 54,171
100,942 92,273 84,964 7,309
42,816 44,622 44,622 --
167,880 172,877 172,800 77
311,638 309,772 302,386 7,386
3,743,495 4,371,353 4,185,030 186,323
1,788,353 1,788,353 1,733,260 55,093
468,020 468,020 425,153 42,867
2,256,373 2,256,373 2,158,413 97,960
2,500 2,500 2,400 100
2,500 2,500 2,400 100
60,777 55,558 51,156 4,402
25,779 26,867 26,867 --
27,980 28,813 28,800 13
114,536 111,238 106,823 4,415
2,373,409 2,370,111 2,267,636 102,475
293,943 292,443 282,517 9,926
47,935 134,729 75,882 58,847
341,878 427,172 358,399 68,773
85,181 85,181 78,002 7,179
92,951 92,951 85,962 6,989
178,132 178,132 163,964 14,168
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MATAGORDA COUNTY

GENERAL FUND Page 6 of 8
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Mental Health:

Operating costs 35,419 35,419 35,419 -

Total Mental Health 35,419 35,419 35,419 -
Ambulance Service:

Operating costs 597,275 592,575 592,575 -
Total Ambulance Service 597,275 592,575 592,575 -
Aid to Others:

Economic Action Committee 33,000 33,000 33,000 -

Edith Armstrong Center 8,400 8,400 8,400 -

Friends of the Elderly 10,900 10,900 10,900 --

Cemetery 3,000 3,000 3,000 -

Indigent Burials 2,000 9,000 3,550 5,450
Total Aid to Others 57,300 64,300 58,850 5,450
Veteran's Service Officer:

Personnel 72,860 71,360 61,587 9,773

Operating costs 7,400 8,900 6,559 2,341
Total Veteran's Service Officer 80,260 80,260 68,146 12,114
Unallocable by department:

Insurance 35,498 32,450 29,879 2,571

Appraisal fees 15,057 15,692 15,692 -

Retiree insurance 18,653 19,209 19,200 9
Total unallocable by department 69,208 67,351 64,771 2,580
TOTAL HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES 1,359,472 1,445,209 1,342,124 103,085
COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
521 Park:

Operating costs 5,000 5,000 4,775 225
Total 521 Park 5,000 5,000 4,775 225
Marine Department:

Personnel 102,068 102,068 82,552 19,516

Operating costs 71,700 848,650 90,610 758,040
Total Marine Department 173,768 950,718 173,162 777,556
Aid to Others:

Economic Development 60,000 63,897 63,897 -

Bay City Library 200,000 200,000 200,000 -

Palacios Library 66,000 66,000 66,000 -

Matagorda County Museum 53,000 53,000 53,000 -

Matagorda Library 6,000 6,000 6,000 -

Museum 4,000 4,000 4,000 --

Service Center 3,591 3,591 3,591 -

Total Aid to Others 392,591 396,488 396,488 --
Agricultural Extension Service:

Personnel 191,296 163,196 145,702 17,494

Operating costs 23,200 26,468 23,463 3,005
Total Agricultural Extension Service 214,496 189,664 169,165 20,499
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MATAGORDA COUNTY

GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

Home Economist Service:
Personnel
Operating costs

Total Home Economist Service

County Fairgrounds:
Personnel
Operating costs

Total County Fairgrounds

Unallocable by department:
Insurance
Appraisal fees
Retiree insurance

Total unallocable by department

TOTAL COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
INFRASTRUCTURE & ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

Transfer Station:
Personnel
Operating costs

Total Transfer Station

Commissioner Precinct #1:
Personnel
Operating costs
Capital outlay
Debt
Total Commissioner Precinct #1

Commissioner Precinct #2:
Personnel
Operating costs
Capital outlay
Debt
Total Commissioner Precinct #2

Commissioner Precinct #3:
Personnel
Operating costs
Capital outlay
Debt
Total Commissioner Precinct #3

Commissioner Precinct #4:
Personnel
Operating costs
Capital outlay
Debt
Total Commissioner Precinct #4

Page 7 of 8

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
141,517 142,414 112,548 29,866
5,500 5,435 4,607 828
147,017 147,849 117,155 30,694
42,729 42,729 42,574 155
76,100 86,100 79,454 6,646
118,829 128,829 122,028 6,801
32,769 29,954 27,581 2,373
13,899 14,486 14,486 -
46,633 48,021 48,000 21
93,301 92,461 90,067 2,394
1,145,002 1,911,009 1,072,840 838,169
116,586 116,586 117,628 (1,042)
376,220 331,220 288,942 42,278
492,806 447,806 406,570 41,236
493,910 493,910 446,650 47,260
774,252 1,194,235 971,215 223,020
-- 5,000 - 5,000
75,899 75,899 75,595 304
1,344,061 1,769,044 1,493,460 275,584
569,942 569,942 446,232 123,710
692,555 969,591 782,160 187,431
22,000 22,000 14,416 7,584
65,553 134,721 130,949 3,772
1,350,050 1,696,254 1,373,757 322,497
558,965 558,965 540,326 18,639
737,974 1,137,594 686,841 450,753
-- 23,000 22,678 322
52,906 52,906 52,906 --
1,349,845 1,772,465 1,302,751 469,714
469,225 496,868 409,261 87,607
808,557 1,126,554 839,301 287,253
- 249,152 249,152 -
67,480 67,480 67,479 1
1,345,262 1,940,054 1,565,193 374,861
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MATAGORDA COUNTY

GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

Right of Way Acquisition:
Capital outlay
Total Right of Way Acquisition

Unallocable by department:
Insurance
Appraisal fees
Retiree insurance

Total unallocable by department

TOTAL INFRASTRUCTURE & ENVIRONMENTAL SVCS

Total Expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Capital lease proceeds

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending

Page 8 of 8

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
-- 25,000 25,000 -
-- 25,000 25,000 -
172,237 157,446 144,974 12,472
73,057 76,139 76,138 1
223,841 230,502 230,400 102
469,135 464,087 451,512 12,575
6,351,159 8,114,710 6,618,243 1,496,467
22,100,392 25,981,059 22,671,975 3,309,084
6,995 (2,312,088) 532,058 2,844,146
- 27,501 27,500 (1)
(7,000) (2,721,092) (7,000) 2,714,092
- 72,907 - (72,907)
(7,000) (2,620,684) 20,500 2,641,184
(5) (4,932,772) 552,558 5,485,330
10,349,375 10,349,375 10,349,375 --
10,349,370 $ 5416,603 $ 10,901,933 $ 5,485,330
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MATAGORDA COUNTY
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Under GASBS No. 34, budgetary comparison information is required to be presented for the general fund and each
major special revenue fund with a legally adopted budget. The County adopted a budget for the general fund using the
modified accrual basis of accounting, which is consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. The County
did not adopt a budget for the CDBG Disaster Recovery major special revenue fund.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

Changes of benefit terms

There were no changes of benefit terms that affected measurement of the total pension liability during the
measurement period.

Changes of assumptions

There were no changes of assumptions or other inputs that affected measurement of the total pension liability
during the measurement period.

59



Combining Statements and Budget Comparisons
as Supplementary Information

This supplementary information includes financial statements and schedules not required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, nor a part of the basic financial statements, but are presented for purposes of additional analysis.






Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are
legally restricted to expenditures for particular purposes.

District Attorney Legal/Law -- This fund is used to account for the transactions related to hot check fees of the
district attorney's office, funds awarded to the County from forfeitures and state funds for the district attorney.

Sheriff & Jail Discretionary -- This fund is used to account for the transactions related to forfeited funds and
inmate commissary sales.

County Clerk Preservation & Automation -- This fund is used to account for the fees collected by the County
Clerk for preservation and automation.

Countywide Records Management & Preservation -- This fund is used to account for fees collected by the
County Clerk for records management and preservation.

Courthouse Security -- This fund is used to account for fees collected by the County Court, District Court and JP
Court for courthouse security.

Justice Court Technology -- This fund is used to account for fees collected by the District Clerk specifically for
justice court technology.

District Clerk Records Management & Preservation --This fund is used to account for fees collected by the
District Clerk for records management and preservation.

County and District Court Technology -- This fund is used to account for fees collected by the County Clerk
specifically for county and district court technology.

Intergovernmental Grants -- This fund is used to account for federal and state grants passed through to other
governments.

Historical Commission Grant -- This fund is used to account for grant proceeds and local match for the purpose
of conducting an historic resource survey in Matagorda County.

Matagorda Water and Sewer -- This fund is used to account for the receipts and disbursements related to the
Texas Community Development Grant for the purpose of wastewater system improvements within the Matagorda
County limits in Matagorda, Texas.

Local Emergency Planning -- This fund was created to account for the activities of the Matagorda County
Local Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC) which is to carry out those responsibilities specified by Public
Law (PL) 99-499 and to implement other emergency plans or strategies as deemed appropriate.

Juvenile Probation Fund -- This fund is used to account for Texas Juvenile Probation Commission grant funds
for administering the juvenile probation program.






MATAGORDA COUNTY
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31,2016

Capital
Projects
Fund Total
Special Debt Capital Nonmajor
Revenue Service Improvements Governmental
Funds Fund Fund Funds (See
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,193,200 $ 56,505 $ 1,872,592 $ 3,122,297
Receivables ( net of allowances for uncollectibles):
Taxes -- 181,423 -- 181,423
Other receivables 1,012 23,886 - 24,898
Total Assets $ 1,194212 §$ 261,814 $ 1,872592 $ 3,328,618
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 2375 % -- $ 422255 $ 424,630
Due to other governments 1 - - 1
Due to other funds 5,651 4,847 - 10,498
Due to others 66,309 - - 66,309
Unearned revenue 201,000 - - 201,000
Total Liabilities 275,336 4,847 422 255 702,438
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - delinquent taxes - 33,165 - 33,165
Unearned revenue - current taxes - 197,800 - 197,800
Total deferred inflows of resources - 230,965 - 230,965
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Restricted for:
Captial projects - - 1,450,337 1,450,337
Debt service - 26,002 - 26,002
Legislative purposes 918,876 - - 918,876
Total Fund Balances (Deficits) 918,876 26,002 1,450,337 2,395,215
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources
and Fund Balances (Deficits) $ 1,194212 $ 261,814 $ 1,872592 $ 3,328,618
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MATAGORDA COUNTY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 Capital
Projects
Fund Total
Special Debt Capital Nonmajor
Revenue Service Improvements Governmental
Funds Fund Fund Funds (See
REVENUES
Taxes $ - 287,891 $ - $ 287,891
Intergovernmental 362,814 -- -- 362,814
Charges for services 262,612 - - 262,612
Investment income 3,704 325 - 4,029
Miscellaneous 32,476 - - 32,476
Total revenues 661,606 288,216 - 949,822
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 38,732 - 1,263,755 1,302,487
Justice system 203,850 - - 203,850
Public safety 1,328 - - 1,328
Corrections and rehabilitation 188,068 - - 188,068
Community and economic development 2,015 - - 2,015
Debt service:
Principal - 180,000 -- 180,000
Interest and fees on debt - 88,405 - 88,405
Total expenditures 433,993 268,405 1,263,755 1,966,153
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures 227,613 19,811 (1,263,755) (1,016,331)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 7,000 -- -- 7,000
Transfers out (27,500) - - (27,500)
Total other financing sources (uses) (20,500) - - (20,500)
Net change in fund balances 207,113 19,811 (1,263,755) (1,036,831)
Fund balances - beginning 711,763 6,191 2,714,092 3,432,046
Fund balances - ending $ 918,876 26,002 $ 1,450,337 $ 2,395,215
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MATAGORDA COUNTY
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
DECEMBER 31,2016

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables ( net of allowances for uncollectibles):

Other receivables
Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Due to other governments
Due to other funds
Due to others
Unearned revenue
Total Liabilities

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Restricted for:
Legislative purposes
Total Fund Balances (Deficits)

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources
and Fund Balances (Deficits)

District
Attorney

62

Legal/Law

121,738

121,738

9,161

9,161

112,577

112,577

121,738

$

$

57,334

$

Sheriff
& Jalil

Discretionary

115,433

115,433

135

1

50
57,148

58,099
58,099

115,433

County Clerk
Preservation &
Automation
$ 514,781
643
$ 515,424

$ 1,288

1,288

514,136
514,136

$ 515,424



Preservation

$

$

Countywide
Records Mgmt

31,986

35
32,021

32,021
32,021

32,021

Courthouse
Security

67,833

119

67,952

61,577
61,577

67,952

Justice
Court

Technology

16,845

73
16,918

16,918
16,918

16,918
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District Clerk
Records Mgmt

Preservation

$ 59,963

45

5 60008

60,008
60,008

5__ 60008

Page 1 of 2

County &
District Court
Technology

$ 54,223

97

$ 54,320
$ —

54,320

54,320

$ 54,320




MATAGORDA COUNTY
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
DECEMBER 31,2016

Total
Nonmajor
Historical Juvenile Special
Commission Probation Revenue
Grant Fund Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 9,320 201,078 1,193,200
Receivables ( net of allowances for uncollectibles):
Other receivables - - 1,012
Total Assets $ 9,320 201,078 1,194,212
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 100 78 2,375
Due to other governments - - 1
Due to other funds - - 5,651
Due to others - - 66,309
Unearned revenue - 201,000 201,000
Total Liabilities 100 201,078 275,336
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Restricted for:
Legislative purposes 9,220 - 918,876
Total Fund Balances (Deficits) 9,220 - 918,876
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources
and Fund Balances (Deficits) $ 9,320 201,078 1,194,212
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MATAGORDA COUNTY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Investment income
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government
Justice system
Public safety
Corrections and rehabilitation
Community and economic development
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending

District
Attorney

Legal/Law

34,843
328

35,171

1,897

1,897

33,274

(27,500)

(27,500)

5,774
106,803

112,577
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Sheriff

&J
Discret

ail
ionary

7,746
25
32,426
40,197

21,464
36,635

58,099

County Clerk

Preservation &
__ Automation

153,221
2,026

155,247

123,039
391,097

514,136



Page 1 of 2

Countywide Justice District Clerk County &
Records Mgmt Courthouse Court Records Mgmt District Court
Preservation Security Technology Preservation Technology
- $ - $ - $ - $ -
12,147 20,231 8,278 10,718 15,428
119 272 57 264 215
12,266 20,503 8,335 10,982 15,643
870 5,654 -- -- --
-- -- -- 5,098 4,349
870 5,654 -- 5,098 4,349
11,396 14,849 8,335 5,884 11,294
11,396 14,849 8,335 5,884 11,294
20,625 46,728 8,583 54,124 43,026
32,021 $ 61,577 $ 16,918 $ 60,008 $ 54,320
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MATAGORDA COUNTY Page 2 of 2
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

Total
Nonmajor
Historical Juvenile Special
Commission Probation Revenue
Grant Fund Funds
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ -- $ 362,814 $ 362,814
Charges for services - - 262,612
Investment income 43 355 3,704
Miscellaneous 50 - 32,476
Total revenues 93 363,169 661,606
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government - - 38,732
Justice system - 192,506 203,850
Public safety - - 1,328
Corrections and rehabilitation - 170,663 188,068
Community and economic development 2,015 - 2,015
Total expenditures 2,015 363,169 433,993
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (1,922) - 227,613
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 7,000 -- 7,000
Transfers out - - (27,500)
Total other financing sources (uses) 7,000 - (20,500)
Net change in fund balances 5,078 - 207,113
Fund balances - beginning 4,142 - 711,763
Fund balances - ending $ 9,220 $ -- $ 918,876

67



MATAGORDA COUNTY

DA LEGAL LAW

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

REVENUES
Charges for services
Investment income

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

JUSTICE SYSTEM

District Attorney:
Operating costs

Total District Attorney

TOTAL JUSTICE SYSTEM

Total Expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures

Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending

68

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
45,665 $ 34,843 $ (10,822)
400 328 (72)
46,065 35,171 (10,894)
17,624 1,897 15,727
17,624 1,897 15,727
17,624 1,897 15,727
17,624 1,897 15,727
28,441 33,274 4,833
(27,500) (27,500) -
(27,500) (27,500) -
941 5,774 4,833
106,803 106,803 -
107,744 $ 112,577 $ 4,833




MATAGORDA COUNTY

SHERIFF & JAIL DISCRETIONARY

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

REVENUES
Charges for services
Investment income
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

PUBLIC SAFETY
County Sheriff:

Operating costs
Total County Sheriff
TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY
CORRECTIONS & REHABILITATION
County Jail:

Operating costs

Total County Jail

TOTAL CORRECTIONS & REHABILITATION

Total Expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending
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Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 13,021 7,746 $ (5,275)
100 25 (75)
38,000 32,426 (5,574)
51,121 40,197 (10,924)
22,121 1,328 20,793
22,121 1,328 20,793
22,121 1,328 20,793
29,000 17,405 11,595
29,000 17,405 11,595
29,000 17,405 11,595
51,121 18,733 32,388
- 21,464 21,464
- 21,464 21,464
36,635 36,635 -
$ 36,635 58,099 $ 21,464




MATAGORDA COUNTY

COUNTY CLERK PRESERVATION & AUTOMATION
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Charges for services $ 151,000 $ 153,221 $ 2,221
Investment income 400 2,026 1,626
Total revenues 151,400 155,247 3,847
EXPENDITURES
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
County Clerk:

Operating costs 243,720 32,208 211,512
Total County Clerk 243,720 32,208 211,512
TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT 243,720 32,208 211,512
Total Expenditures 243,720 32,208 211,512
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)

expenditures (92,320) 123,039 215,359

Net change in fund balances (92,320) 123,039 215,359
Fund balances - beginning 391,097 391,097 -
Fund balances - ending $ 298,777 $ 514,136 $ 215,359
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MATAGORDA COUNTY

COUNTYWIDE RECORDS MANAGEMENT/PRESERVATION
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

REVENUES

Charges for services

Investment income

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
County Courthouse:

Operating costs

Total County Courthouse

TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT

Total Expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending
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Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
10,000 12,147 $ 2,147
1,250 119 (1,131)
11,250 12,266 1,016
11,250 870 10,380
11,250 870 10,380
11,250 870 10,380
11,250 870 10,380
- 11,396 11,396
- 11,396 11,396
20,625 20,625 -
20,625 32,021 $ 11,396




MATAGORDA COUNTY
COURTHOUSE SECURITY

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Charges for services $ 19,000 $ 20,231 $ 1,231
Investment income 200 272 72
Total revenues 19,200 20,5083 1,303
EXPENDITURES
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
County Courthouse:

Operating costs 17,000 5,654 11,346
Total County Courthouse 17,000 5,654 11,346
TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT 17,000 5,654 11,346
Total Expenditures 17,000 5,654 11,346
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)

expenditures 2,200 14,849 12,649

Net change in fund balances 2,200 14,849 12,649
Fund balances - beginning 46,728 46,728 -
Fund balances - ending $ 48,928 $ 61,577 $ 12,649
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MATAGORDA COUNTY

JUSTICE COURT TECHNOLOGY

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Charges for services $ 8,500 $ 8,278 $ (222)
Investment income 500 57 (443)
Total revenues 9,000 8,335 (665)
EXPENDITURES
JUSTICE SYSTEM
Justice Court Technology:

Operating costs 9,000 - 9,000
Total Justice Court Technology 9,000 - 9,000
TOTAL JUSTICE SYSTEM 9,000 -- 9,000
Total Expenditures 9,000 - 9,000
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)

expenditures - 8,335 8,335

Net change in fund balances - 8,335 8,335
Fund balances - beginning 8,583 8,583 -
Fund balances - ending $ 8,583 $ 16,918 $ 8,335
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MATAGORDA COUNTY

DISTRICT CLERK RECORDS MGMT/PRESERVATION
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

REVENUES
Charges for services
Investment income

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

JUSTICE SYSTEM

District Clerk:
Personnel
Operating costs

Total District Clerk

TOTAL JUSTICE SYSTEM

Total Expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending
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Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
5,600 $ 10,718 5,118
200 264 64
5,800 10,982 5,182
1,579 5,098 (3,519)
5,800 - 5,800
7,379 5,098 2,281
7,379 5,098 2,281
7,379 5,098 2,281
(1,579) 5,884 7,463
(1,579) 5,884 7,463
54,124 54,124 -
52,545 $ 60,008 7,463




MATAGORDA COUNTY

COUNTY & DISTRICT COURT TECHNOLOGY
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

REVENUES

Charges for services

Investment income

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
County Clerk:

Operating costs
Total County Clerk
TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT
JUSTICE SYSTEM
District Clerk:

Operating costs

Total District Clerk

TOTAL JUSTICE SYSTEM

Total Expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending
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Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
7,500 $ 15,428 7,928
160 215 55
7,660 15,643 7,983
7,000 - 7,000
7,000 - 7,000
7,000 - 7,000
4,860 4,349 511
4,860 4,349 511
4,860 4,349 511
11,860 4,349 7,511
(4,200) 11,294 15,494
(4,200) 11,294 15,494
43,026 43,026 -
38,826 $ 54,320 15,494




MATAGORDA COUNTY

DEBT SERVICE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes $ 184,221 $ 287,891 $ 103,670
Investment income - 325 325
Total revenues 184,221 288,216 103,995
EXPENDITURES
Debt Service
Principal 180,000 180,000 -
Interest 4,221 88,405 (84,184)
Total debt service 184,221 268,405 (84,184)
Total Expenditures 184,221 268,405 (84,184)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures - 19,811 19,811
Net change in fund balances - 19,811 19,811
Fund balances - beginning 6,191 6,191 -
Fund balances - ending $ 6,191 $ 26,002 $ 19,811
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Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for funds held in a trustee or agency capacity for the benefit
of others and therefore cannot be used to support the government’s own programs. Fiduciary
funds include pension trust funds, investment funds, private-purpose trust funds and agency
funds. The County is only combining agency funds as defined below.

County Clerk Trust Fund -- This fund is used to account for County Court awards for the benefit of minors or
others considered by the County Court to be incapable of handling the award individually.

District Clerk Trust Fund -- This fund is used to account for District Court awards for the benefit of minors or
others considered by the District Court to be incapable of handling the award individually.

Inmate Trust Fund -- This fund is used to account for money held on behalf of inmates booked into the
County jail.

Tax Assessor Collector -- This fund is used as a clearing account for the receipt and disbursement of tax
collected by the County Tax Assessor Collector on behalf of other governmental entities.



MATAGORDA COUNTY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUNDS

DECEMBER 31,2016

County District
Clerk Clerk
Trust Trust
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,145 $ 2,659,324
Total Assets $ 12,145 $ 2,659,324
LIABILITIES
Due to other governments $ - $ -
Due to others 12,145 2,659,324
Total Liabilities 12,145 2,659,324
NET POSITION
Unrestricted - -
Total Net Position $ - $ -
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Inmate

Trust Fund

37,669
37,669

37,669

37,669

Tax
Assessor
Collector

219,488

219,488

219,169
319

219,488
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Adult
Probation
Fund

736,700

736,700

736,700

736,700

Total
Agency
Funds

3,665,326

3,665,326

955,869
2,709,457

3,665,326




MATAGORDA COUNTY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

Balance Balance
December 31 December 31
2015 Additions Deductions 2016
COUNTY CLERK TRUST FUNDS
ASSETS
Cash & investments 220,848 $ 2,791 $ 211,495 $ 12,144
Total Assets $ 220,848 $ 2,791 $ 211,495 $ 12,144
LIABILITIES
Due to others $ 220,848 $ 2,791 $ 211,495 §$ 12,144
Total Liabilities $ 220,848 $ 2,791 $ 211,495 $ 12,144
DISTRICT CLERK TRUST FUNDS
ASSETS
Cash & investments $ 3,262,272 $ 94,694 $ 697,642 $ 2,659,324
Total Assets $ 3,262,272 $ 94,694 $ 697,642 $ 2,659,324
LIABILITIES
Due to others $ 3,262,272 $ 94,694 $ 697,642 $ 2,659,324
Total Liabilities $ 3,262,272 $ 94,694 $ 697,642 $ 2,659,324
INMATE TRUST FUND
ASSETS
Cash & investments $ 31,103 $ 177,341 $ 170,775 $ 37,669
Total Assets $ 31,103 $ 177,341 $ 170,775 $ 37,669
LIABILITIES
Due to others $ 31,103 $ 177,341 $ 170,775 $ 37,669
Total Liabilities $ 31,103 $ 177,341 $ 170,775 $ 37,669
TAX ASSESSOR COLLECTOR
ASSETS
Cash & investments $ 191,482 $ 354,993 $ 326,987 $ 219,488
Total Assets $ 191,482 $ 354,993 $ 326,987 $ 219,488
LIABILITIES
Due to other governments $ 191,366 $ 437,836 $ 410,033 $ 219,169
Due to others 116 5,621 5,418 319
Total Liabilities $ 191,482 $ 443,457 $ 415451 $ 219,488
ADULT PROBATION
ASSETS
Cash & investments $ 672,367 $ 2,808,152 $ 2,743,819 $ 736,700
Total Assets $ 672,367 $ 2,808,152 $ 2,743,819 $ 736,700
LIABILITIES
Due to others $ 672,367 $ 3,324,778 $ 3,260,445 $ 736,700
Total Liabilities $ 672,367 $ 3,324,778 $ 3,260,445 $ 736,700
TOTAL AGENCY FUNDS:
ASSETS
Cash & investments $ 4,378,072 $ 3,437,971 $ 4,150,718 $ 3,665,325
Total Assets $ 4,378,072 $ 3,437,971 $ 4,150,718 $ 3,665,325
LIABILITIES
Due to other governments $ 191,366 $ 437,836 $ 410,033 $ 219,169
Due to others 4,186,706 3,605,225 4,345,775 3,446,156
Total Liabilities $ 4,378,072 $ 4,043,061 $ 4,755,808 $ 3,665,325
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Other Supplementary Information

This section includes financial information and disclosures not required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board and not considered a part of the basic financial statements. It may, however, include information which is
required by other entities.






Harry Afadapa & Associates, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants
2300 Avenue 1|

Bay City, Texas 77414
(979) 245-7361~ www.afadapa.com

In ndent Auditor's R rt on Internal Control over Financial R rting an
n Complian n her M rs B n an Audit of Financial men
Performed In Accordance With vernment Auditin naar

To the Commissioners
Matagorda County
1700 Seventh Street
Bay City, Texas 77414

Members of the To the Commissioners:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Matagorda County, as of and for
the year ended December 31, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise Matagorda County's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated June 26,
2017.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Matagorda County's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Matagorda County's internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Matagorda County's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Matagorda County's financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required
to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
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We noted certain matter that we reported to management and those charged with Goverance of Matagorda
County in a separate letter dated June 26, 2017.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Respectfully submitted,

Digitally signed by Harry Afadapa &

Harry Afadapa & joce e

DN: cn=Harry Afadapa & Associates, PC,
. o=Harry Afadapa & Associates, PC, ou,
ASSOCIateS, PC email=harry@afadapa.com, c=US

Date: 2017.07.10 12:56:08 -05'00"

Harry Afadapa & Associates, PC

Bay City, Texas
June 26, 2017

81



Harry Afadapa & Associates, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants
2300 Avenue 1|

Bay City, Texas 77414
(979) 245-7361 ~www.afadapa.com

In ndent Auditor's R rt on Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal

ntrol Over Compliance R ir he F ral an niform idan

To the Commissioners
Matagorda County
1700 Seventh Street
Bay City, Texas 77414

Members of the To the Commissioners:
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the Matagorda County's compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a
direct and material effect on each of the Matagorda County's major federal and state programs for
the year ended December 31, 2016. Matagorda County's major federal programs are identified in
the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal and state awards applicable to its federal and state programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Matagorda County's major
federal and state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to
above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principle and udit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referenced to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal or federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Matagorda
County's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major

federal and state program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the
Matagorda County's compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

In our opinion, the Matagorda County complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal and state programs indentified in the summary of auditor's result section of the
accompanying schedule of finding and questioned cost for [the year ended December 31, 2016.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Matagorda County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Matagorda County's internal
control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect
on each major federal and state program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major
federal and state program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance
with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Matagorda County's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or
operation of a control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal
course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance
with a type of compliance requirement of a federal and state program on a timely basis. A
material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiency, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program
that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with goverance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we considered to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements
of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Respectfully submitted,

Digitally signed by Harry Afadapa &

Harry Afadapa & Associates, PC

DN: cn=Harry Afadapa & Associates,
. PC, o=Harry Afadapa & Associates, PC,
ASSOC I ateS, PC ou, email=harry@afadapa.com, c=US

Date: 2017.07.10 12:57:18 -05'00'

Harry Afadapa & Associates, PC

Bay City, Texas
June 26, 2017
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MATAGORDA COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

A. Summary of Auditor's Results

1. Financial Statements
Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:
One or more material weaknesses identified? Yes X No

One or more significant deficiencies identified that

are not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes X None Reported

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted? Yes X No

2. Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
One or more material weaknesses identified? Yes X No

One or more significant deficiencies identified that

are not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes X None Reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
(CFR) Part 2007 Yes X No

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal or State Program or Cluster
97.039 Hazard Mitigation Grant
14.228 Community Development Block Grant

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between

type A and type B programs: $750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X  Yes No

B. Financial Statement Findings

NONE

C. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

NONE
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MATAGORDA COUNTY
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

Management's Explanatio
Finding/Recommendation Current Status  If Not Implemented

2015-001

Not all payroll samples tested were supported with

approved payroll change notices and /or were properly

calculated for overtime in accordance with policies. Completed

2015-002

Not all cash reconciliations agreed with the general

ledger with reconciling errors that have not been cleared

and /or corrected. Completed
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MATAGORDA COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS Page 1 of 2
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
Federal or State Grantor/ Federal Pass-Through Pass-Through  Federal or
Pass-Through Grantor/ CFDA or State to State
Program Title Number Number Subrecipients  Expenditures
FEDERAL AWARDS
U. S. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
Direct Programs:
Coastal Impact Assistance Program - Tres Palacios Study 15.426 F12AF0082-0001 $ 75,550 $ 75,550
Coastal Impact Assistance Program - Gulf Pier 15.668 F13AF00061-0001 - 20,863
Coastal Impact Assistance Program - Palacios Ed Pavilion 15.668 F13AF00080-0001 688,814 688,814
Total Direct Programs 764,364 785,227
Total U. S. Department of the Interior 764,364 785,227
U. S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
-Pass through: Texas-Office of Governor
SCAAP program 16.605 2015-H1202-TX-AP -- 2,557
Governor's Criminal Justice Division 16.540 22,879 22,879
Victims of Crime Act Formula grant 16.575 - 6,490
Forensic Equipment Project 16.738 - 30,212
Total U. S. Department of Justice 22,879 62,138
U. S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & URBAN DEVELOPMENT
Passed Through Texas Department of Agriculture
*Community Development Block Grant - Texas Capital Grant 14.228 713082 - 1,236,290
Total Passed Through Texas Department of Agriculture - 1,236,290
Total U. S. Department of Housing & Urban Development - 1,236,290
U. S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY
Immigration and Custom's Enforcement (ICE) ** - 5,995
Passed Through Texas Department of Public Safety
Emergency Management Performance Grant 97.042 15TX-EMPG-0528 - 34,791
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.042 14-SR-48321-01 144,147
Hazard Mitigation 97.039 DR-1791-323 3,437,035 3,437,035
Hazard Mitigation 97.039 DR-1791-324 1,645,363 1,645,363
Total Passed Through Texas Department of Public Safety 5,082,398 5,261,336
Total U. S. Department of Homeland Security 5,082,398 5,267,331
U. S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Passed Through Texas Dept of Family & Protective Services:
Foster Care Title IV-E - Welfare 93.658 23940146 5,006
Foster Care Title IV-E - Legal 93.658 23940147 17,668
Total Passed Through Texas Dept of Family & Protective Services - 22,674
Total U. S. Department of Health and Human Services - 22,674
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS $ 5,869,641 $ 7,373,660

** -Not provided
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MATAGORDA COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS Page 2 of 2
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
Federal or State Grantor/ Federal Pass-Through Pass-Through  Federal or
Pass-Through Grantor/ CFDA or State to State
Program Title Number Number Subrecipients  Expenditures
STATE AWARDS
TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY
Operation Border Star N/A LBSP-15-00XX 56,092
Stonegarden Grant- pass thru Victoria County N/A 13-GA-48469-2 - 28,991
Total Texas Department of Public Safety - 85,083
TEXAS INDIGENT DEFENSE COMMISSION
Indigent Defense N/A 221-15-161 - 28,943
28,943
TEXAS JUVENILE JUSTICE DIVISION
Commitment Reduction Program N/A  TJJD-A-2016-161 a 20,821
Commitment Reduction Program N/A  TJJD-A-2017-161 b 9,860
Basic Probation N/A  TJJD-A-2016-161 a 90,234
Basic Probation N/A TJJD-A-2017-161 b 44,144
Mental Health N/A  TJJD-A-2016-161 a 11,490
Mental Health N/A TJJD-A-2017-161 b 9,871
Community Programs N/A  TJJD-A-2016-161 a 77,157
Community Programs N/A  TJJD-A-2017-161 b 31,805
Pre & Post Adjudicaton N/A  TJJD-A-2016-161 a 46,219
Pre & Post Adjudicaton N/A TJJD-A-2017-161 b 15,482
Regional Diversion Alternative N/A  TJJD-R-2016-161 a 4,840
Total Texas Juvenile Justice Division - 361,923
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF STATE AWARDS $ -- $ 475,949

a 8 months 2016 grant year {January thru August}
b 4 months 2017 grant year {September thru December}

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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MATAGORDA COUNTY
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of
Matagorda County and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information in this
schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
(CFR) Part 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented
in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the Matagorda County's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information
as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required
supplementary information says about the County's overall financial health.

Contents Page

Financial Trends 89-92
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the County's
financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity 93-96
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors affecting the County's
ability to generate its property and sales taxes.

Debt Capacity 97-100

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the County's
current levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information 101-102

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand
how the County's financial activities take place and to help make comparisons over time and
with other governments.

Operating Information 103-105

These schedules contain information about the County's operations and resources to help the
reader understand how the County's financial information relates to the services the County provides
and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive
annual financial reports for the relevant year.






68

€LL'vvL've  $ 0€2'19.°82 $ vee'GLo've  $ vev'6cSee  $ 66L6VICe  $ L98°GIL'6C  $802°/12'92  $ 8E0°82E'6C  $ 8SE'B06'0E  $ 196'¥2S'lE  $ UoNIsod 19N SalIAIOY [BJUSWIUISACY [B10 L
81¥'€L6°S 08%'0€6°S 0/9'C18'S 050'8€2'9 618°€6€'8 10£008°6 €6.'G6E0+ GBG'ELEO pajousalun
8GECy8 Zreols 260°'GE6 LEL960°L 8./6°€ ¥€0°S ¥65°S - pajouisey

k6€'0LL'0C  $ 26E°LL0°CC $ 8ve'eGe Lt $ 2LLe8LGE  $ LeVIOP9L  $989°18€9L  $ LIV'6L8'LL  $ €0L2eS'6L  $ 1/6'90S°02 $ 99¢'ISL e $ sjessy [ended ul jusuisanul JoN

SOIIAIOY |BIUBWIUIBAOL)

102 €102 cloe L1102 0102 6002 8002 12002

(BNILNNODDV 40 SISYE TvNHDIV)
SHVYIA NIL LSV
LNINOJINOD A9 NOILISOd L3N

ALNNOD VAHOOVLVIN



06

(Ssv'9L0'y) ¢ G€87916%9 $ ve8'syS’t  $(L0L619) $(Svveey) $(ivetose)  ¢$(oegort’e)  $(oze08st)  $(€09°919) $(z80°698°1) SOIIAIOY [elUsWUIBN0D
uonIsod 18N ui abueyn
€cL'0LL'9L  $ 8/2'98v'Sl $ 966'855‘VL  $ /8l1°Ge6'ElL  $ 62c'Gee'et  $ G6SIvLCh S vSeve Ll $ 8G9 LZ¥LL  $ 9es'zse0L  $ 182'e600L  $ SSINAIOY [BIUSWUIBA0Y) [B10 |
€e0‘eLl LEL°/91 891281 L12'991 eglL'eel $92°0€2 8G6°0vE 8/0°9v¢ €/1°08¢ 926°€6/. sbuluies JuswiseAul pajoulsaIuN
[43 R 44" [WAA*14 191201 18226 /Ge‘ee 966292 £80°66 17069 1G9°02 060l snosue||eosIN
8GG'c6e'9L  $ 9/9'¢Lesl $ /9€69¢' vl $ 68L'ceL'El  $ 6188GL°cL  $ Grr'eveel  $ €12 oS L $ 6€S°09L° L $ 906°le6'6 $ SLY'v6L6 $ soxe] Auadoid
ISBIIAINY |BlJUBWIUIBA0Y)
uollsod 18N ul wmmcmr_o 18YlQ pue senuaAay |elausn)
(826'922'02)  $(evi'695°8) $(zor'eroel)  $(r68'FLOVE)  $(pLL'€9e’el)  $(9g6'gve’SE)  $(¥80°2S0°SH)  $(8s6°1S0'El)  $(eee’e86'0L)  $(89e°856°LE) S SBIIAIOY [BIUBWILIBAOD)
anuanay/(asuadx3) 19N
0S2'69Y'EL  $ GG6'6LLLL $ £/2'880°kL ¢ S62'6S8°FL  $ 029'2LO0L  $ 251'G9L'8 $ viv'Ger's $ 8G¥'/6¥'8 $ LI¥'/G2'8 $ 020°/89°8 $  senuanay Weibold SBNIAIOY [BJ8ULLLIBAOD) [BI0 ]
¥02°001°L ¥6E°LYY'8 ¥81°0.8°2 6/8'G91 - - - - - €01'81E SUOANQUIUOD pue sjueln) [eyded
G/6'G90° | 161°Ge2‘1 612°22€°L GEV'LIGSG 2rsIsey 8/6'712°2 60.°€8€°2 69€°005°2 9621991 8£9°96.°) suofnquiuo) pue sjuess Buyelsdo
G19°26¢ 8L LY €15°25€ 289'62 ) $95°211 225'8/2 Si1°/8€ €G/'c8 20%°99 06%1L S8OIAIBS [BJUSLUUOIIAUS PUE 8INJONIISBIU|
09.'v1e 269'822 2r0'081 9z29'881 01¥°002 192°961 811‘502 08e' vy L VAR At 050°91L L JuswidojaAsp JJWOU09® PUE AJUNWWOD
evL2L 5879 £80°2L 6€€°€9 ¥20°19 L11°€9 0£0°0L 086°GY 905°/G 1£6°05 S8OIAIBS UBWINY PUEB U} ESH
¥26'6L1 GE6'PSL SL6°07 L 82¥'60 1 GI5°E6 162'821 620°292 0vS'Sy L GG1°06 2.8'S6 UoIlB}|IqBYS] PUB SUOIDBII0D
/¥6°128'2 zvi'zee'e GG6'86E°C 052'€2e‘e 686'922°C £89°/G1°€ 861°961°C ¥8€°992°¢ 0S0°LLY'E 069'98.°€ Aiages ongnd
19082 816261 2SL'vLE L G16°290°L 8G2'€8.L 628°268 610289 €15°690 L 998zt 619'602°} waysAs sousnp
609°CLE L $ 6E¥'88€°L $ ¥69'GeE | $ LvL'v0g’L $ 89z'e8e’ | $ 6ge'Lee |t $ 960'v€2’L $ 6e5°1veL $ 126'€98L $ 129°1veL $ Juswuianob [eieusn
:S90IAIBS 0} sabieyn
:S8IIAIJOY [BJUSWUIBAOL)
sanuanay weliboid
828'G6L've ¢ 86E'6YLGE $ 6EV'IS0've ¢ B8L'VIP'OZ  $ PEE'9LE'EZ  $ 880°80F'EC  $ 86¥'LLP'EC  $ 9ev'eKSle  $ 9GL'9ove'6l  $ 8se'sy90z ¢ sesuadxe SellAIOe [BjuBWUIBA0D [Bl0 ]
186'v21 €06'vS1 zvs'6e €0°0¢ 898°/€ 020°0% 88/°0¥ 0£0°€S ¥22'65 9€/'99 198Q wie | -Buo uo isaisiu|
0€6'0€L°L €eL 1611 950'70€‘2 66199 68'709°2 100°062 - - - - [eluswuIBAOBIBIY|
20€'085'8 281'851°9 118'822'S 2ee'Tre’9 ZLLLL9'G 61€°188°9 925°evL L 8z1'5e€‘9 80%°226'G 9//'968°9 S8OIAIBS [BJUBLUUOIIAUS PUE 8INJONJISBIU|
zzo'01e't 101°28€E L 601°091 L ¥.G°€12'S SR ZAM] £25'682'2 29%°200°2 616°26G ) €G2°/91°L $9G°Gee‘1 JuswidojaAsp JJWOU09® PUE AYUNWWOD
0G0°0G¥ I 1€2°80G L 1G6°81LY°L 1G9°06€°L 982'¥SE‘L 8/5'%9€E‘L GI18'/6E°L 28.'e82°L zLr'ele’t 00°08 1L S8OIAIBS UBWINY PUEB U} ESH
952692 2v8'6.S'e L18v€€°2 82¢€'192°2 0£6'9€0°2 gse'ove'e £88'96€°2 £86'622'2 662'€9€°2 L21'8€9°C UOIIB}|IqBYS] PUB SUOIDBII0D
SY0'vOY'y ozl'62'v 6£€£°268°C 116219 008'6.E°€ G80°ILYY'E €18°10€'e £09'0v8°€ YAIN A 6.5°1€2°€ Aiages ongnd
#88'800'Y 0v2'380't 9/€'259'¢ €15°261'E y12'€6€e 8z1°/19°C 190°€L9°E yri'20r'e 105°G96'2 ¥GL1€62 waysAs sousnp
2E0'765'Y $ HWOVIY'Y $ 99€°0€0'y $ 9e5°v95°E $ 060°€/G°E $ 2zgi'gee'e $ 0519162 $ 2050082 $ 90/°€0€'2 $ 89l'v/EC $ Juswuianob [eieusn
SOIJIAIJOE [BJUSWIUIBAOL)
sasuadxy
9102 G102 ¥102 €102 2102 L1102 0102 6002 8002 1002

(BNILNNODDV 40 SISYd TvNHOIV)
SHY3IA TvOSId NIL LSV
NOILISOd L3N NI SIONVHO

ALNNOD VAHOOVLIVIN



16

Gle'see’e  $ 8¥0'eEV'E $ ¥28'628 $ 08¥'918 $ 985768 $0/1'€0L'L  $/G200L°L  $991°2/0°L  $16/°/90°L  $ 292'GE6 $  spund [euswuldaAon Y0 IV [eloL
- - - - (2ov'ee) spund aojaes 1ge@
- 26.'260°t 2ve'elot ¥26'990°} 62.'896 Spun4 enuansy [eroeds
:u| pauoday ‘panasaiun
- - - - G0S‘.L ¥26't /18 - paniasay
Gle'see’e ¢ sv0'eer'e $ ¥28'628 $ 08¥'918 $ 985168 $oLL'e0L L $ - $ - $ - $ - $ palouisay
Spun4 [BJUBWIUIBAOL) J8Yl0 |V
€66°106'0F  $ S/e'6¥E°0L $ 0/v'/61°0L  $ ¥89'069'6  $ c0S0Le'8  $90e'8ee’.  $G20/96'9  $ /806 KL $60L96¥L  $080TKSL  $ pund [essuay [elo]
-- -- - 95€'¥89'9 180'61¥'L 6019612 080'2¥S°L pantesaiun
¥52'960°'6 109'€29°2L €06'G26°'L ¥6.'880°'8 0509689 0LL'¥10'9 - - - - paubisseun
678'9EY' | 821'88.°t 612'¥S9°t y8'vee’t €220k 916°1€6 - - -- - panIWwon
0€€'801 $ 9v9°/€6 $ 8pe'L19 $ 8¥0°'.€€ $ 6£€£°/8¢€ $ 089'262 $ 699'282 $ - $ - $ - $ 8|qepuadg-uoN
pun4 [eJausn)
9102 G102 7102 €102 2102 02 0102 6002 8002 1002

(ONILNNODQY 40 SISVd T¥NHOOV a3I4IaON)
SHY3IA TvOSI4 NIL LSV
SANN4 TYLNIWNHIAOD 40 SIONVIVE ANN4

ALNNOD VAHOOVIVIN



26

%Gh'2 %612 %09} %0’ %L2} %.6°0 %E6°0 %L6°0 %80} %G}
(e22'v8Y) $ 0ELvSL2 $ €£1°09G $6/0292°1  $ €£8'166 $ v61vie $(126'82%) $(5v9°29) $ 95598 $(g05v8Y'2)
- 1/2'SE0Y LLELSH G96°95Y - 028'8st - - - -
(005vE) (005'v€) (005'v€) (0oos‘eg) (569°01) (e50°02) (0s¥°€3) (219°29) (SLL'68Y) (y8e'v6.°2)
00S‘vE 00S‘vE 00S‘vE 005°€e G69°01 £G0°0L 0GY'€S 21929 GLL'68Y ¥8E'v6.°2
- 9v6'vee L LLELSH G96°95Y 028'88t - - - -
- 0000522 - - - - - -
- G2£09 - - - - - -
(e22'v8Y) (LpLr8e't) 29.'80% 011'G08 €€8°166 ¥/£'G8 (L26'82Y) (5%9°29) 955'98 (S0s‘v8v'2)
8G0°69.°LE ¥80°618°LE 1/1'818°€2 969° 16612 2199.0°22 161°082°02 ¥9v°G00° 12 992'G/6'6} GEG‘8GE‘SE G/E280° 12
- ££2°96 - - - - - - - -
¥98°/21 96£°9¢ 8G8‘ve 8G/°28 G2E'68 £60°2Y 659'8Y €/8'VS £G68°09 122'69
69665 899215 G92'€0€ 152'8/2 6G5'zIe 000°GYk 000°GEL 000°0E+ 000°GZk 99v° 181
62695 | 2/6°208'8 €1£299°L 880'GY L L 988°650° 122'88E’ L 66585 ¥25'226 289°€80° | SYS 169'C
9LL2YP'9 211686 950v0€‘2 661995 Ger'el9e 100°062 - - - -
890°086‘G £81°/81'G £8/°252'G 912'G86'8 60G° 128 /8€°850°G 100°22L'S 8G1°€90°G SYL Sy 1G09/E'Y
GG8'V/0° L 0€5'€61 L ¥60°G20° 92¢'166 865VE0° L 220°292°L Gg8L'‘eeet 500‘€2e 6v0°€60° L 9G8°886
veLere't 29666 L 66E°262 t v12'e8et 60LvSe t 825192t YEL'OLE L 821'802" | 90 k'L YY9'0Ek L
¥0.'GSh'2 129'8G€°2 9£0'65+2 1G120L'2 1GE'906' | 152'/80°2 9vs 191 LEY'810°C €0LLYLe €11085°2
0G9‘128‘c 090°0S.‘€ 682°LEV'C 9¥2'902'c 8819662 ¥10°060‘C 99€°/96'2 YvLIvS'e I6'786'C 1GE°188°2
98.°0vS‘e 9G6£°929‘c v16'682'C 020°8Et‘e 6.1°020°C €12'662'c ££2°68€‘C I61'GGLE 12L'ovL'e 98£°€08'2
L0S'618'Y 169°02€°C 0LL2LE'E 12.'292'c 188°290‘¢ 195°G08°2 G689 219'9v9'2 G08°6E7'2 9€/'65€°2
G8.L'v82 IE £¥6°LE5°0¢ 6692212 908°96.°G2 Sv'890°ce LL1'918°02 £61°9/5°02 129'206'6} 160'SPY 8L 0/8°LvS'8t
/80°Eve G16°90€ FOLOSH b ¥6.'€2€ Y1292 192'0/2 Zri'ees £v.'€le £60°L1€ LLO'2SS
€e0eLt LS9} 96£°681 L61°0L} €8/°9v1 0/2'9v2 280°89¢ Ges'ele 992‘ kL ¥G8°0v8
128'62¥ L1€02P 221'90¥ £80°65€ GG6'6.E 06€'607 G1.'85€ 961'GLY 086°20¥ 81E'0ve
GGE LEY'Y ¥68°G86‘Y 610°€26'Y 118269 20S'Shh'y GG/‘229'Y ¥8.°656' 868'v2S‘y £9£°868'y 806°860°G
981v0€‘8 LIS'6LL'E £/8'Gop'e L12'69'G gzl'ele'y £99'G62'2 808°0Et'2 120'8.Y'2 6YE V69" L Yv6'62L L
160°0LL 19299/ Zv8'G08 022'08. 8/8'v6/ 6€.°26. G88'cl8 6v5'818 065°2v8 8e2'ce8
002°€€8°9F  $ 80 LLL'VL $ 98s'98z'cl ¢ #/8°062°€l  $ /90°992°21 $ /80'6l2Ct $ Z0LeeH Ll $689F2L Ll $ 0SY'€06'6  $ L6S'/YL6
9102 G102 7102 €102 2102 02 0102 6002 8002 1002

sainjpuadx3 [eudesuon JO
abeluadlad y Sy 921M8S 199Q

saoueeg pund ul abuey) 1aN

(sesn) sa2inos
Buioueul4 Jay1Q [e101
INO sJajsuel]
u| siajsuel]
spaaooid aseg) ende)
uoieBi|qo Jo seredyieD
wnjwald aouenss|
(sosn) s924nog Buiodueuiq JBYl10

sainypuadx3 (Japun) JonQ
SONUBAAY JO SS80XJ

sainypuadx3 [e1o0|
S]S00 99IMIBS 109
1sala|
[edidulg
:901AJBS 109
Aepno euden
[eluswiuIdaA0bIBlU|
[BIJUBWUOJIAUS PUB 8JNIONJISelju]
ASP 210U pue AJunwwo)
S92IAI8S UBWINY PUB Y}esaH
uoljell|igeyal pue suoi}oalio)
Kiopes olgnd
aonsnp
uoljeJisiujwpe [eJausr)
sainypuadxy

SanuaAay [e10|
SNO8UEB||99SIIN
BaWOoU| JUBWISAAU|
saulq

$92IMIBS 10} sabueyn
[eluswiuIaA0bIBIU|
slwJad pue sasuadl
soxe]

Sanuanay

(ONILNNODQY 40 SISVd T¥NHOOV a3I4IaON)

SHV3A TVOSId N3L 1SV

SANN4 TY.LNINNHIAOD 40 SFONVIVE ANNA NI STONVHO
ALNNOD YAHOOVLVIN



€6

10u1s1q [esiesddy Aluno) epioberep 19210

%000°00+ ¥20'6LE°108°L 89G56€°0 ¥20'6LE°108°L (oge'zeL'ovL) 0G9°991°LL¥ ) ¥09'6€€°0L0°L 91/5102
%000°00+ G81'G¥S'092'y 198S€°0 G81'G¥S'09e'y (G91°221'6.9) 06.°€2G'099°1 0958V 1'6LL°E SHvioe
%000°00+ GE2'92r'6LS'Y 6602€°0 GE2'9er'6.LS'Y (860°286'659) 0,5°988°16.°C €9/°1eg'LvEe yHeLoe
%000°00+ L9E'GELE9S Y 8/862°0 L9E°GELE9S Y (069°256°099) 0,9'260°221°} 18E°000°L66°C gheloe
%000°00+ 198°v68°68Y Y 291820 198°v68°68Y Y (L¥S°21€'9¥9) ¥G2'19.'066 PSLLSY'G80'Y cHiioe
%000°00+ €61'G86'ELY'Y 8/¥/2°0 €61'G86'ELY'Y (Ge1°2€6'259) 079'8.6'€GS" | 889°Cv6'CLY'E L1/010C
%000°00+ 612'988'6EL'Y 86¥.2°0 612'988'6EL'Y (¥59°69€°019) 018°22L9LL L €90°C€G'€ES'E 0}/6002
%000°00+ L9€'2€6'G86°E 816/2°0 L9€'2€6'G86°E (026720 L6Y) G09'620'G6 289'L/6°18E'Y 60/8002
%000°00+ 625'99G'GYS'E €65.2°0 625°99G'GYS'E (9G2°015‘ 19Y) 4R ATA T 2 LGP ¥E808S°E 80/,002
%000°00+ G91°/G8G'e9E’e 62¢892°0 G91°'/GG'e9E’E (9¥/'vEL'€9Y) 6€0°LL0°1GS gLiIGlLelaLee £0/9002
anjeA 9|gexe] [enjoy anea aley xe| anea Auadoig Auadoig Auadoig JeaA

jo abejuadiad a|gexe ] 10010 passassy 1dwax3 xe| [eaJ-UON [eay [eosi4

B SE anjep [enioy [elo] a|gexe] [ejo] passassy passassy
pasSsassy d|qexe | palewnsy

SHV3A TVOSId N1 1SV
Ald3d0dd 319V¥XVL 40 ANTVA TVNLOV A3 LVINILST ANV INTVYA dISSISSY

ALNNOD VAHOOVIVIN



v6

10ssassy Xe| (JS| SOI0B|ed PUB 10SSassy Xe| Alunoo) :80in0s

8986.°2 928610 82670} 82€0°0 $G220°0 1GS20°0 G8161L°0  Z¥OLLO 18G99°'0  89G6€°0 089000 8888€°0 91/5102
68892 12881°0 v12e0’t 929¢€0°0 G91/00  €2180°0 ¥/681°0 12S¥0°0 8/¥89°0  /98S€0 €8%00°0 $8€5€°0 SHvioe
L1¥09°2 ¥28S1°0 Ly2yO'L 16620°0 €0690°0  /£/980°0 6¥81°0  G19¥0°0 9/999'0  6602€0 ¥0¥00°0 G691€°0 yHeLoe
G68..2 1609€°0 00L¥0°} 000€0°0 90900  80€£60°0 €2/91'0  G/8€0°0 71990  8.862°0 101000 L/¥62°0 gheloe
2988v'e 00240 00.¥0°} 000€0°0 001200 002800 009€L'0  006€0°0 00590 291820 2000 0S2/2°0 cHirioe
8/9¢v°2 008110 00.¥0°} 000€0°0 006900  00€£80°0 009210  008€0°0 001990  8.v/e0 €2¥00°0 650/2°0 L1/010C
8616€C 00621+0 008€0°} 000€0°0 00900 004800 00€eL'0  000€0°0 00€L9°0  86%.20 €¥¥00°0 650/2°0 0}/6002
8LLYEC 002240 00610°} 000€0°0 000£0°0  009.0°0 009+L'0  00%€0°0 00650  81S/¢0 €9%00°0 G50/2°0 60/8002
6006€2 951910 06.200'} 000€0°0 001200  0S9.0°0 026LL'0  00E¥0°0 005090  €6S/¢0 G1900°0 8/692°0 80/,002
620852 008600 00082’} 000€0°0 001200 008500 00/¢L'0  00€¥0°0 005090 628920 G9500°0 ¥9292°0 £0/9002
Buiddepano 199Q Bunesado 199Q Bunesado 199Q Bunesado 199Q Bunesado aley 199Q Buneredo JTeaA
pue 108.1q SIS sjoulsiq [eroads sjousia AN i) 1031 [e10 L [eosi4
[elo| saley Buiddepan) Aunos epioberepy

SHV3A TVOSId N1 1SV
S31VH XV1 ALH3d0Hd ONIddVTd3IAO ANV 1O03dId

ALNNOD VAHOOVIVIN



MATAGORDA COUNTY
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAX PAYERS

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

2015/2016

2006/2007

Percentage of
Total County

Percentage of
Total County

Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable

Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Value Rank Value Value Rank Value
NRG South Texas LP $ 861,905,520 11.05% $ -
Tres Palacios Gas Storage 267,759,470 3.43% -
Equistar Chemicals LP 134,608,600 1.73% 192,621,510 5.73%
Williams FId Svcs - Gulf Coast Co. 98,379,030 1.26% 34,553,712 1.03%
Oxea Corporation 84,830,100 1.09% -
Formosa Plastics Corp UGS 56,016,970 0.72% -
Kinder Morgan Texas Pipeline 54,561,630 0.70% -
Celanese LTD Chemical Division 45,470,300 0.58% 73,702,710 2.19%
AEP Texas Central Company 38,576,050 0.49% 29,618,970 0.88%
Kinder Morgan Texas Pipeline 38,389,660 0.49% -
Equister Chemicals LP UGS - - 39,300,610 1.17%
Texas Genco, LP - - 905,818,120 26.93%
Midtex Gas Storage Company - - 30,111,710 0.90%
Flint Hills Resources Inv -- 46,499,480 1.38%
BP America Production Co. -- -- 48,725,960 1.45%
BP America, Inc. UGS -- -- 27,142,930 0.81%
Total $ 1,680,497,330 21.54% $ 1,428,095,712 42.46%
Total Taxable Assessed Value $ 7,801,379,024 $ 3,363,557,465

Source: Matagorda County Tax Assessor
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MATAGORDA COUNTY
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Governmental Activities

Certificates Total Percentage  Per Capita
Fiscal of Capital Governmental  of Personal Total
Year Obligation Leases Activities Income (1) Debt (1)
2007 $ 1,360,000 -- 1,360,000 0.16% 34
2008 1,235,000 -- 1,235,000 0.13% 33
2009 1,105,000 -- 1,105,000 0.12% 30
2010 970,000 -- 970,000 0.09% 26
2011 825,000 188,820 1,013,820 0.09% 27
2012 675,000 126,265 801,265 0.07% 22
2013 520,000 459,478 979,478 0.09% 27
2014 355,000 620,634 975,634 0.08% 27
2015 2,987,310 1,359,864 4,347,174 0.32% 119
2016 2,804,294 944,431 3,748,725 0.25% 100

Notes: Details regarding the County's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the fiancial statements.

(1) Personal income and per capita can be found in the schedule of demographic and economic statistics on page 85.
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MATAGORDA COUNTY
RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Percentage of

Estimated
General Less: Amounts Actual Taxable

Fiscal Obligation Available in Debt Value of Per
Year Bonds (1) Service Fund (2) Total Property (3) Capita (4)
2007 1,360,000 - 1,360,000 0.05% 34
2008 1,235,000 817 1,234,183 0.04% 33
2009 1,105,000 4,924 1,100,076 0.03% 30
2010 970,000 7,505 962,495 0.02% 26
2011 825,000 11,363 813,637 0.02% 22
2012 675,000 13,787 661,213 0.01% 18
2013 520,000 18,055 501,945 0.01% 14
2014 355,000 14,657 340,343 0.01% 9
2015 2,987,310 6,191 2,981,119 0.07% 82
2016 2,804,294 26,002 2,778,292 0.07% 76

Notes: Details regarding the County's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

o= —

1
2
3
4

—~ e~~~

This is the general bonded debt of governmental funds

This is the amount restricted for debt service principal payments
Estimated actual value of taxable property can be found on page 77.
Population data can be found in the schedule of demographic and economic statistics on page 85.
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MATAGORDA COUNTY
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2016

Governmental Unit

Debt Repaid With Property Taxes
City of Bay City
Tidehaven Independent School District
Palacios Independent School District
Bay City Independent School District
Matagorda Independent School District
Matagorda County Navigation District #1
Caney Creek Municipal Utility District
Beach Road Municipal Utility District

Other Debt
Bay City Independent School District Capital Lease
Bay City Independent School District Notes Payable
Matagorda Independent School District Capital Lease
Van Vleck Independent School District Capital Lease
City of Bay City Notes Payable
City of Bay City Leases
City of Palacios Notes Payable

Subtotal, Overlapping Debt
County Direct Debt:

Capital Lease
Certificates of Obligation

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt

Outstanding

Debt

13,578,417
46,340,000
2,455,000
12,293,484
4,474,999
1,860,000
2,832,000
375,000

3,695,131
556,530
62,408
397,461
51,849
101,617
13,494

Estimated

Share of

Estimated Direct and
Percentage Overlapping

Applicable Debt

100.000% 13,578,417
100.000% 46,340,000
94.076% 2,309,562
100.000% 12,293,484
100.000% 4,474,999
100.000% 1,860,000
100.000% 2,832,000
100.000% 375,000
100.000% 3,695,131
100.000% 556,530
100.000% 62,408
100.000% 397,461
100.000% 51,849
100.000% 101,617
100.000% 13,494
88,941,952
944,431
2,804,294
3,748,725
$ 92,690,677

Sources: Assessed value data used to estimate applicable percentages provided by Matagorda County Appraisal District
Debt outstanding data provided by each governmental unit.
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MATAGORDA COUNTY
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

2016 2016 2007 2007

Percentage of Percentage of

Total County Total County
Top Employers Employment Employment Employment Employment
South Texas Project 1,159 7.48% 1,114 7.18%
Bay City ISD 556 3.59% 646 417%
Wal-Mart 158 1.02% -- --
Matagorda Hospital 295 1.91% 307 1.98%
Palacios ISD 218 1.41% 244 1.57%
City of Bay City 151 0.98% 318 2.05%
Matagorda County 226 1.46% 246 1.59%
Lyondell 157 1.01% 195 1.26%
Oxea 165 1.07% 135 0.87%
Van Vleck ISD 155 1.00% 157 1.01%
Tidehaven ISD 128 0.83% 148 0.95%
HEB 108 0.70% 103 0.66%
Tenaris 316 2.04% ** -
Total 3,792 24.49% 3,613 23.30%
Total County Employment 15,485 15,508

Sources:

Each employer

Texas LMCI Tracer - Total County employment for current year
Labor Force - Total County employment nine years ago

* Not avaliable

** Opened 2014
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